
PLANNING COMMISSION 
AGENDA 

MARCH 12, 2015 

Commission Members 

Tim D’Alessandro 

Norman Fincher 

Chris MacMillan 

Bill Mansfield 

David McFadden 

Mark McKechnie 

Patrick Miranda 

Jared Pulver 

Alec Schwimmer 

City of Medford 

City Council Chambers 

411 W Eighth Street, Third Floor 

Medford, OR  97501 

(541) 774-2380 

Regular Planning Commission 

meetings are held on the second & 

fourth Thursdays of every month 

Beginning at 5:30 p.m. 

Page 1



 
 

                                                    AGENDA 
MEDFORD PLANNING COMMISSION    March 12, 2015  

5:30 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers 

411 West Eighth Street, Medford, OR 
 

10. Roll Call 

20. Consent Calendar/Written Communications (Voice Vote) 

20.1 CUP-13-139 Consideration of a request for a one-year time extension of the Conditional 
Use Permit for the following improvements in the Lone Pine Creek Riparian 
Corridor related to the construction of the Highway 62 Bypass: realignment of 
approximately 400 feet of the creek approximately 100 feet to the east; 
removal of the existing concrete lined channel and construction of a new 
channel constructed in a manner that more closely simulates natural 
conditions; construction of dual 6 foot x 10 foot box culverts countersunk with 
natural streambed material; and riparian area plantings. Subject site is 
located just west of Highway 62 approximately 830 feet southwest of Delta 
Waters Road.  (Oregon Department of Transportation, Applicant; Janell 
Stradtner, Agent) 

   
20.2 LDP-13-071 Consideration of a request for a one-year time extension of the tentative plat 

for a 3 lot partition on 1.36 acres extending between Sunset Avenue and 
Willow Brook Drive approximately 810 feet west of Orchard Home Drive 
within the SFR-6 (Single Family Residential – 6 units per acre) zoning 
district. (Linda Bevard, Applicant). 

30. Minutes 

30.1 Approval of Minutes from the February 12, 2015, meeting 

30.2 Approval of Minutes from the February 26, 2015, meeting. 

40. Oral and Written Requests and Communications 

50. Public Hearings  

 New Business 

50.1 CP-14-114 The City of Medford is proposing to amend the Urban Growth Boundary 
(UGB) for the purpose of providing a twenty–year land supply based on the 
City’s projected need for residential and employment land. The proposed 
changes include: amending (expanding) the Urban Growth Boundary, 
assigning General Land Use Plan (GLUP) map designations to the areas 
added to the UGB; amending the Medford Street Functional Classification 
Plan of the Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan to include 
the expansion areas; and amending some portions of the Urbanization and 
GLUP Elements of the Comprehensive Plan to accommodate the UGB 
amendment. (City of Medford, Applicant). 

60. Report of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission 

70. Report of the Joint Transportation Subcommittee 

80. Report of the Planning Department 

90. Messages and Papers from Chair of Planning Commission 

100. Remarks from the City Attorney 

110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission 

120. Adjournment 

 
Page 2



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

Proposal

CITY OF MEDFORD

PLANNING DEPARTMENT

STAFF REPORT - EXTENSION OF TIME

March 5, 2015, for the meeting of March 12, 2015

Planning Commission

Kelly Akin, Principal PlannerL.
Lone Pine Creek Riparian Improvements (CUP-13-139)
Oregon Department of Transportation, Applicant (Janell Stradtner, Agent)

Consideration of a request for a one-year time extension of the Conditional Use Permit
for the following improvements in the Lone Pine Creek Riparian Corridor related to the
construction of the Highway 62 Bypass: realignment of approximately 400 feet of the
creek approximately 100 feet to the east; removal of the existing concrete lined channel
and construction of a new channel constructed in a manner that more closely simulates
natural conditions; construction of dual 6 foot x 10 foot box culverts countersunk with
natural streambed material; and riparian area plantings. Subject site is located just west
of Highway 62 approximately 830 feet southwest of Delta Waters Road.

Background

The Planning Commission adopted the Final Order granting approval of the conditional
use permit on March 27, 2014. The applicant is requesting an extension of time as
allowed under Medford Land Development Code (MLDC) Section 10.250.

Project Review

Per MLDC Section 10.250, extensions shall be based on findings that the facts upon
which the conditional use permit application was first approved have not changed to an
extent sufficient to warrant refiling of the application. It can be found that the
circumstances of approval have not changed to a degree that warrants refiling of the
application. The work has not yet begun, and no new development has occurred in the
vicinity of the improvements. This is the only extension allowed under the Medford Land
Development Code.

Recommended Action

Approve the one-year time extension to March 24, 2016, for the ODOT Lone Pine Creek
Riparian Improvements (File No. CUP-13-139) per the Staff Report dated March 5,
2015, and Exhibit A - letter from Janell Stradtner, received February 20, 2015.

Page 3



Lone Pine Creek Riparian Improvements (CUP-13-139)
Extension Request Staff Report

Exhibits

March 5, 2015

Exhibit A Extension Request Letter received February 20, 2015
Vicinity Map

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA: March 12, 2015

20f2

Page 4



_ Orego
" ': ...• John A. Kllzhilber. M.D.. Governor

February 13,2015

James Huber
Planning Director
City of Medford Planning Department
200 South Ivy Street, Lausmann Annex. Rm. 240
Medford, OR 97501

RE: OR 62: 1-5 to Dutton Road Project
Extension Request for CUP-13-139

James:

Depa~entofTransportation

Region 3
3500 NW Stewart Parkway

Roseburg, OR 97470
Phone: (541) 957-3500

Fax: (541) 672-6148

RECEIVED

fEB 2. 0 1.015
~ ,.n..mJG DEPT.

PL~"'I1."uP

On March 27, 2014 the Medford Planning Commission approved a Conditional Use Permit for the
construction of the Highway 62 Bypass project, located within the Lone Pine Creek Riparian Corridor.
The Conditional Use Permit expires in March of 2015, one year from the approval date, unless
substantial construction has been completed. The project is not expected to go to bid until summer of
2015.

1 am requesting an extension of the Conditional Use Permit in accordance with the Medford Land
Development Code Section 10.250.

The Conditional Use Permit specifically concerned the: realignment of approximately 400 feet of Lone
Pine Creek channel; removal of the existing concrete lined channel and construction of a new channel
that more closely simulates natural conditions in accordance with OOFW standards; construction ofdual
6 x 12 foot box culverts (in accordance with the Medford Development Code Sections 9.701 - 9.706,
Flood Control) countersunk with natural streambed material; and riparian area plantings, in accordance
with ODFW standards.

Thank you for your consideration, please feel free to call me at (541) 957-3521 or send an email to
janell.stradtner@odot.state.or.us.

Sincerely,

j~~
Janell Stradtner
Project Planner

CC: Kelly Akin

CITY OF MEDFORD
EXHIBIT # .A-

~----
AIe# C<; f -, ':$ -/3't
~.?..!Qv c.e ILMo-

Page 5



11912014

Area ofMap

City Limits
IilillilIIiiiI

o Medford Zoning

rl~, , ~ Subject Area

;:; UGB

CJ TaxLots

File Number:

CUP-13-139

Map/Taxlot:

371W18A TL 3000

Applicant:

ODOT

Proposal:

Freeway Crossing and
Culvert Relocation - Lone
Pine Riparian Corridor

Application Name/Description:

ODOT

MFR-15

C-R

I-L

CITY OF MEDFORD .. PLANNING DEPARTMENT

Page 6



Date:

To:

From:

Subject:

Proposal

CITY OF MEDFORD

PLANNING DEPARTMENT

STAFF REPORT - EXTENSION OF TIME

March 5, 2015, for meeting of March 12, 2015

Planning Commission

Kelly Akin, Principal Planner ll ..
Bevard Partition (LDP-13-071)
Linda Bevard, Applicant

Consideration of a request for a one-year time extension of the tentative plat for a 3 lot
partition on 1.36 acres extending between Sunset Avenue and Willow Brook Drive
approximately 810 feet west of Orchard Home Drive within the SFR-6 (Single Family
Residential - 6 units per acre) zoning district.

Background

The Planning Commission adopted the Final Order granting approval of the tentative plat
on October 10, 2013. The applicant is requesting an extension of time as allowed under
Medford Land Development Code (MLDC) Section 10.269.

Project Review

Per MLDC Section 10.269, extensions shall be based on findings that the facts upon
which the tentative plat application was first approved have not changed to an extent
sufficient to warrant refiling of the application. It can be found that neither the
circumstances of approval nor applicable site development standards have changed to a
degree that warrants refiling of the application. This is the only extension allowed under
the Medford Land Development Code.

Recommended Action

Approve the one-year time extension to October 10, 2016, for the Bevard tentative plat
(File No. LDP-13-071) per the Staff Report dated March 5, 2015, and Exhibit A -letter
from Linda Bevard, received February 19, 2015.

Exhibits

Exhibit A Extension Request Letter received February 19, 2015
Vicinity Map

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA: March 12,2015

Page 7



February 18, 2015
Linda Bevard
PO Box 7
Eagle Point, OR 97524

_ . RDJ.\....... '_. ....

FEB 192015

Planning Dept.

RE: Request for time extension, Bevard Partition LDP-13-071, Linda Bevard, owner.

Kelly Akin, Principal Planner
City of Medford Planning Department
Lausmann Annex
200 South Ivy
Medford, Oregon 97501

Dear Kelly,

I am writing to request a time extension of one year for the tentative plat that was
granted the end of September 2013, LDP-13-071. This request is necessary because it
has taken longer than anticipated to acquire the financial release from Bank of America.
B of A has released the property in question and has recorded the documents with the
county, stating the property is free from encumbrance. Because this process was so
lengthy it has put me behind in fulfilling the Code requirements. To date only Exhibit I
has been completed. Currently Scott at Kas &Associates is reviewing the Staff report in
order to finalize a plan to move forward with the completion of the other exhibits.

I want to emphasize that to my knowledge there have been no changes in any of the
conditions since I first applied for the tentative plat and since the application for the
tentative plat was approved.

Thank you for your consideration on this one year extension.

l51uA~~
Linda Bevard
541-821-0609

CITY OF FORO
EXHIBIT#

FIle # t.A::Jp ~-12-'---";"O-7 -{ -
6 :t'lq\JSl QI\J (JF IIM &

Page 8



CITY OF MEDFORD .. PLANNING DEPARTMENT
· 'SFaR-OO

•i
i
•I

SFR:.QO

SF.R-6

SFR:6

SFR·O

Vicinity Map
Application Name/Description:

Linda Bevard
Proposal:

3-lot Partition
File Number:

LDP-13-071
Applicant:

Linda Bevard
Map/Taxlots:

372W35DD 3100
372W35DC 2100

rh Subject Area

o Medford Zoning

~ UGB

D TaxLots

City Limits

PUD

Area ofMafe1

~

Bn12013
Page 9



                                             
10. Roll Call  
10.1 Election of Officers 
  
 Commissioner Mansfield nominated Commissioner McFadden to serve as Chair for 2015.  

Commissioner Fincher seconded. 
  
 Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  
 Commissioner Mansfield nominated Commissioner Miranda to serve as Vice Chair for 2015.  

Commissioner Fincher seconded. 
  
 Roll Call Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  
10.2 Chair McFadden appointed Commissioner Schwimmer to the Site Plan and Architectural 

Commission for 2015. 
  
 Chair McFadden appointed Commissioner D’Alessandro to the Joint Transportation 

Subcommittee for 2015. 
  
20. Consent Calendar/Written Communications.     
20.1 E-14-059 Final Order for an Exception to allow for the reduction of required street dedication 

along a northerly section of Cedar Links Drive adjacent to Cedar Landing Planned Unit 
Development within an SFR-4 (Single Family Residential – 4 units per acre) zoning district.  
(Cedar Investment Group LLC, Applicant; Hoffbuhr and Associates, Agent). 

 MINUTES                    
Planning Commission Meeting 

February 12, 2015 
 

 
The regular meeting of the Medford Planning Commission was called to order at 5:30 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers on the above date with the following members and staff in attendance: 
 

Commissioners Present Staff 
Tim D’Alessandro Jim Huber, Planning Director 
Norman Fincher Kelly Akin, Principal Planner 
Chris MacMillan John Adam, Senior Planner 
Bill Mansfield Kevin McConnell, Deputy City Attorney 
David McFadden Terri L. Rozzana, Recording Secretary 
Patrick Miranda Alex Georgevitch, Acting City Engineer 

Jared Pulver Greg Kleinberg, Fire Marshal 
Alec Schwimmer Aaron Harris, Planner II 

 Sarah Sousa, Planner IV 
Commissioners Absent Desmond McGeough, Planner II 

Mark McKechnie, Excused Absence  

Page 10



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 2 

  
 Motion: Adopt the consent calendar. 
  
 Moved by: Vice Chair Miranda          Seconded by: Commissioner D’Alessandro 
  
 Voice Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  
30. Minutes.   
30.1 The minutes for January 22, 2015, were approved as submitted. 
  
40. Oral and Written Requests and Communications.  None.   
  
 Kevin McConnell, Deputy City Attorney, read the Quasi-Judicial Statement. 
  
50. Public Hearing.   

 New Business 

50.1 DCA-14-133 The Planning Department proposes an ordinance amending Land Development 
Code, Sections 10.250, 10.294 and 10.031 to allow revisions to Conditional Use Permit and 
Site Plan and Architectural Review approvals. The proposed code amendment provides 
criteria to identify circumstances in which permit revisions shall be allowed. The proposal 
aims to simplify the land use process by allowing applicants to modify permits without having 
to start the application process from the beginning.  (City of Medford, Applicant).   

  
 Aaron Harris, Planner II, presented background, outlined the proposal, explained Site Plan 

and Architectural Commission’s recommendation and read the Land Development Code 
amendment approval criteria.   

  
 Commissioner MacMillan asked staff to give an example of a minor modification to a 

conditional use permit.  Kelly Akin, Principal Planner, reported that a couple of years ago, an 
existing church that had a Porte-cochere share that they wanted to enclose to make a 
vestibule.  It was floor area that did not increase capacity of the facility.  There was no relief 
from the conditional use permit requirement because it added gross floor area to the 
structure. It was approximately 350 square feet.        

  
 Commissioner Pulver asked what does open space mean as opposed to landscape?  Mr. 

Harris commented that green space is on the site plan.      
  
 Commissioner Pulver asked that if a minor change is received by the Planning Director and 

the result is of his decision is opposed, who do they appeal the decision to?  Mr. Harris stated 
that because it is a ministerial decision they would have the option of a full review.      

  
 The public hearing was opened and there being no testimony, the public hearing was closed. 
  
 Motion: Based on the materials presented in the staff report dated February 2, 2015, the 

Planning Commission adopts the findings and conclusions that all of the approval criteria are 

Page 11



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 3 

either met or are not applicable and forwards a favorable recommendation for adoption to 
the City Council per the staff report dated February 2, 2015, including Exhibits A and B. 

  
 Moved by: Vice Chair Miranda       Seconded by: Commissioner Pulver 
  
 Commissioner Schwimmer stated that this agenda item was presented to the Planning 

Commission at a study session and the Planning Department did a nice job correcting some of 
the substantive problems with making sure these were clearly objective criteria.  The issue 
that was raised at the Site Plan and Architectural Commission level, were concerns raised by 
several of the professional architects and it had to do with the architectural element.  The 
concern was that if there was a general purpose or architectural element that needed to be 
changed, that change could take place and it would not be subject to Site Plan and 
Architectural Review but allowed by the Planning Director.  He supports the motion.    

  
 Voice Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  
50.2 LDP-14-132 Consideration of tentative plat approval for a three lot partition on 

approximately 11.9 acres located on the west side of Crater Lake Highway and the east side 
of Grumman Drive approximately 400 feet south of Burlcrest Drive within an I-L/AR/RZ (Light 
Industrial/Airport Radar Overlay/Restricted Zoning) zoning district.  (Lithia Real Estate, Inc., 
Applicant; Maize and Associates, Inc., Agent). 

  
 Chair McFadden inquired whether any Commissioners have a conflict of interest or ex parte 

communication they would like to disclose.  None were declared. 
  
 Sarah Sousa, Planner IV, read the land division criteria and gave a staff report. 
  
 The public hearing was opened and the following testimony was given. 
  

a. Jim Maize, Maize & Associates, Inc., P. O. Box 628, Medford, Oregon, 97501.  Mr. Maize 
stated that he was present tonight representing his client Lithia Real Estate, Inc.  This 
application is fairly simple.  It is dividing the land into three parcels for three separate auto 
dealerships.  The applicant has submitted findings that show that this partition meets the 
criteria for a land division.  They are agreeable to the conditions proposed by City staff and 
requests that the Planning Commission adopt those findings and approve this application.    

  
 The public hearing was closed. 
  
 Motion: Adopt the Findings as recommended by staff and adopt the Final Order for approval 

of LDP-14-132 per the Staff Report dated February 5, 2015, including Exhibits A through M. 
  
 Moved by: Vice Chair Miranda       Seconded by: Commissioner MacMillan 
  
 Voice Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  

Page 12



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 4 

50.3 PUD-14-074/LDS-14-091/ZC-14-103  Consideration of a request for a Planned Unit 
Development consisting of a Preliminary PUD Plan for Rockland Place and Tentative Plat for a 
31 lot single family subdivision and a zone change from County RR-5 (Rural Residential – 5 
acre minimum lot size) to SFR-10 (Single Family Residential – 10 units per gross acre) on two 
parcels totaling 4.61 acres located on the south side of Harbrooke Road, approximately 385 
feet east of North Phoenix Road, within an SFR-10/S-E (Single Family Residential – 10 units 
per gross acre / Southeast Overlay) zoning district. The zone change pertains only to 371W34 
Tax Lot 1600.  (Richard & Leslie Lovett Trust, Applicant; Richard Stevens and Associates, 
Agent). 

  
 Chair McFadden inquired whether any Commissioners have a conflict of interest or ex parte 

communication they would like to disclose.  None were declared. 
  
 Sarah Sousa, Planner IV, stated that the land division criteria had previously been read.  She 

read the planned unit development and zone change criteria and gave a staff report.  Ms. 
Sousa addressed the two letters that staff received and emailed to the Planning Commission 
and placed at their seats.  These letters will be submitted into the record as Exhibits X and Y. 

  
 Mr. McConnell wanted to make sure that staff was addressing the proper criteria.  On page 

54 of the agenda packet under Planned Unit Development Section 2(a) it mentions Section 
10.235(C)(1)(a-e) and Ms. Sousa mentioned 10.235(B).  What is the proper criterion?  He 
wants to make sure the staff report is addressing the proper criterion before they move 
forward.  Ms. Sousa replied that it is Section 10.230.  Mr. McConnell asked if the staff report 
addresses Section 10.230?  Ms. Sousa shook her head yes.     

  
 Vice Chair Miranda reported that on Exhibit X that the regard line reads PUD-14-074, LDS-14-

091 and ZC-14-013.  It should be PUD-14-074, LDS-14-091 and ZC-14-103.  
  
 Commissioner MacMillan stated that one of the proposed modifications is elimination of the 

7 foot parking lane.  Does staff anticipate that people will still park along both sides of the 
road and if so, will they still have room for 2-way traffic?  Ms. Sousa replied that they would 
not have enough room to maneuver with cars on both sides.  She does not know if there will 
be no parking signs.          

  
 Commissioner D’Alessandro asked if these were all City streets?  Ms. Sousa replied yes, they 

are all public streets.     
  
 Commissioner Pulver asked if the applications were a package or could they be split up?  Ms. 

Sousa replied that the zone change is a must.     
  
 Mr. McConnell reminded staff and the applicant that there are a lot of criteria with these 

applications to address.  He recommended that staff address the issues raised in Exhibit X.  
For instance, one of the issues is that the staff report says that the application meets the 
requirements of the Southeast Circulation Plan and the creator of Exhibit X states it does not.  
This is right for an appeal if not addressed.  Each one of the issues will need to be addressed 

Page 13



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 5 

at some point tonight before the Planning Commission makes a decision tonight.  It is a lot of 
material.       

  
 The public hearing was open and the following testimony was given. 
  

a. Clark Stevens, Richard Stevens and Associates, P. O. Box 4368, Medford, Oregon, 97501-
0168.  Mr. Stevens reported that he is present tonight representing Richard and Leslie Lovett 
for the Rockland Place Planned Unit Development which includes a change in zoning from RR-
5 to SFR-10 and a subdivision tentative plat.  Staff has presented a complete report which 
includes the staff report and the applicant’s findings which has addressed applicable criteria.  
With the applicant’s application there were three modifications proposed.  Staff has 
represented those modifications correctly.  One of the questions raised by Commissioner 
Pulver was whether or not there was going to be parking on one side.  Stonegate Estates has 
no parking on both sides.  The applicant is going to try and match exactly what is proposed 
for Stonegate Estates.  They would be in agreement to have no parking on both sides of the 
street.  The important factor is to provide the second sidewalk because of the pedestrian 
access going both north and south.  The future residents in this subdivision and to the north 
would have access to the Larson Creek Greenway through Stonegate Estates and into the 
future commercial district.  Providing safe pedestrian traffic is why they are making this 
proposal onto Rutherford Drive.  As far as the alleys for lots less than 50 feet in width there is 
no place to put an alley.  The applicant is proposing several lots that are less than 50 feet in 
width which is justification for the side yard setback modification.  They originally requested 
a 4 foot setback across the board.  The applicants are in agreement to go the 5 foot setback.  
The purpose for this is that they do not have the garage as the dominant feature along the 
streetscape.  Six foot setbacks are very limiting to what they can provide for a front door and 
front entry when the garage is in the front.  They are in agreement to go with the 5 foot 
setbacks versus what they proposed at 4 foot and what Planning staff is recommending at 
the 6 foot setbacks.  They would like to have Exhibit A Discretionary Conditions changed to 5 
foot setbacks, if possible.  Also, in Exhibit Q the Parks Department recommended different 
street trees.  They applicants are in agreement with all of those.                            

  
 Mr. Stevens addressed the letters that were received this afternoon.  Ms. Peterson’s 

comments made three comments regarding vehicle access, setbacks and street designs.  Her 
recommendation is to create wider lots.  This project cannot provide for wider lots and still 
meet the minimum density.  The applicants are proposing 31 lots within this project.  The 
minimum density of this area is 30.  All three of Ms. Peterson’s arguments are to make the 
lots wider.  That is not practical or feasible to meet the density.  Mr. Knecht’s letter is 
requesting that the applicant’s relocate Rutherford Drive as it terminates into Harbrooke.  
The only thing that Mr. Stevens can say about that is this is the purpose of why they have the 
neighborhood meetings.  The meeting was full disclosure of what they were proposing.  He 
had full opportunity to bring his concerns to that meeting.  At the eleventh hour he requests 
the street be moved.  The applicants have done the preliminary storm drain plan with this 
alignment.  If he wanted to propose his own development he will be required to do a Planned 
Unit Development.  Therefore, he has that opportunity to take those modifications if they 
were offset 6 foot and he has to have a shorter lot that does not meet the Code, those 

Page 14



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 6 

modification requests are available to him at that time.  The applicants would like to keep the 
design and alignment as proposed for this project.           

  
 Chair McFadden asked whether the section north of Sydney Way is not a residential lane 

designation with park strips?  Mr. Stevens reported that it is a minor residential 55 foot right-
of-way.  Chair McFadden asked if Mr. Stevens would be amendable to those types of 
alignment changes or at least some alignment change if the City was to give exception to 
allow the street to be moved within the right-of-way so that he would end up with less park 
strip on one side versus the other side of the street.  Would that be something that could be 
designed to accommodate?  Mr. Stevens stated that his answer to that would be as long as it 
is not a major modification to the Planned Unit Development that they would have to make a 
reapplication or re-plat with this or final plat.  He would defer that to staff and the engineers.  
He would be interested in discussing it if they wanted to reduce the planter strips a few feet 
maybe on the north side to make it match.   

  
 Mr. Stevens reported that the property is within the Southeast Medford Overlay and a 

Planned Unit Development is required.  Being in the sub-area 15 the SFR-10 zoning is the 
appropriate zone for the district.  They support staffs recommendation for approval of the 
Planned Unit Development, subdivision and zone change with their one request for a 5 foot 
side yard setback compared to the 4 foot they originally proposed or the 6 foot proposed by 
staff.      

  
b. Theresa Peterson, 3636 Creek View Drive, Medford, Oregon, 97504-9128.  Ms. Peterson 

stated that this is not a creative or imaginative project that preserves natural features or 
does something special for transit or creates any open space.  The purpose and intent is 
lacking a little bit.  There is nothing special here.  In summary, she is looking for compliance 
with the standards, wider lots or structure design that fits lots that are there and sidewalks 
on both sides all the way through as indicated in the Southeast Circulation Plan.  She does 
not like narrow streets.  She asked the Commission to approve the zone change, deny the 
setback request and deny the Planned Unit Development with the requested exceptions.       

  
 Mr. Stevens stated that the Planned Unit Development is required for being in the Southeast 

Overlay.  This is a standard subdivision looking type project.  There are a few requirements 
for being within the Southeast Overlay such as alleys that they requested the modification 
because it is not practical with their development.  Ms. Peterson mentioned green space and 
open spaces.  If they provide such as that they will lose a lot and density is an issue.  Larson 
Creek is a block away for the green space. Public Works mentioned that the current standard 
for a residential lane is no parking on one side of the street for Rutherford Drive south of 
Sydney Way.   

  
 Alex Georgevitch, Transportation Manager/Acting City Engineer stated that currently it does 

not look like there is no parking on one side of the street on Rutherford Drive but it is a 
requirement per the Code.  Public Works will be placing “No Parking” signs on one side of the 
street.  In their staff report they recommend that it is built per the Code.     

  

Page 15



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 7 

 Chair McFadden asked Mr. Georgevitch about the alignment of Rutherford Drive at 
Harbrooke.  Will there be alignment variations that could be explored at that intersection?  
Mr. Georgevitch reported that staff would have concerns moving the street within the 
existing right-of-way and not shifting the center line.  They require that the center of the road 
line up with the center of the right-of-way.  The six foot jog anticipated will work.  It does not 
appear to preclude future development.       

  
 Mr. McConnell stated that Mr. Stevens addressed several issues raised in the letter regarding 

the wider lots.  They cannot have wider lots because of the minimum density requirements.  
Ms. Peterson made an argument in her letter regarding alleys as to why one cannot do a 
minimum access easement.  Mr. McConnell does not think that concern has been addressed.     

  
 Chair McFadden stated that it is his opinion that the answer to wider lots and alleys is based 

around density.     
  
 The public hearing was closed. 
  
 Motion: Adopt the Findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the Final 

Orders for approval of PUD-14-074, LDS-14-091 and ZC-14-103 per the Staff Report dated 
February 5, 2015, including Exhibits A through Y.  On Exhibit X, the typographical error in the 
regard line and on the grid there was an accidental omission on 1(d), should read as no.  The 
proposed 5 foot setback is reasonable from the applicant.   

  
 Moved by: Vice Chair Miranda       Seconded by: Commissioner Pulver 
  
 Commissioner D’Alessandro made a Friendly Amendment: Parking only on one side of 

Rutherford south of Sydney Way and sidewalks on both sides of the road. 
  
 Commissioner Pulver spoke to the motion stating that sidewalks that lineup with Stonegate 

Development to the south is appropriate.  He does not think the parking is appropriate given 
the width of the street and having sidewalks on both sides.  The density requirement is 
causing a challenge making it hard to address all concerns.  A setback in the 5 to 6 foot range 
is realistic.  The Commission should accept the modification of the alleys since it is not 
feasible with the product they are dealing with.    

  
 Commissioner Schwimmer stated that he is struggling with the modifications.  The 

modifications are necessary for the Planned Unit Development to move forward in order to 
meet the density requirements.  It is his opinion that the subjective altruistic goals in Section 
10.230 are not met.     

  
 Voice Vote: Motion passed, 6-2, with Commissioner Fincher and Commissioner Schwimmer 

voting no. 
  
50.4 PUD-14-116/LDS-14-117  Consideration of a Preliminary Planned Unit Development Plan, 

including proposed modifications to Land Development Code standards pertaining to specific 

Page 16



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 8 

lots including: 1) modification of minimum lot area, width, depth, coverage, and frontage 
standards, and 2) implementation of private streets to be utilized as shared driveway 
easements; and consideration of a tentative subdivision plat to create 41 residential lots and 
two common area lots on an 8.16 gross acres located on the east side of Thomas Road, 
approximately 800 feet north of Sunset Drive, within the SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, 6 
dwelling units per gross acre) zone district.  (Stella Real Estate Investments, LLC, Applicant; 
CSA Planning, Ltd., Agent).   

  
 Chair McFadden inquired whether any Commissioners have a conflict of interest or ex parte 

communication they would like to disclose.  None were declared. 
  
 Desmond McGeough stated that the planned unit development and land division criteria had 

previously been read and gave a staff report.  Mr. McGeough stated that staff received 
revised exhibits from the Public Works Department and the Fire Department and a letter 
from Judy Hogue that were distributed to the Planning Commission by email and placed at 
their seats.  Those will be labeled Exhibits C-1, E-1 and L and submitted into the record. 

  
 Chair McFadden asked if there was a City policy of crossing wetlands. Do they have to be 

crossed?  Could the eastern portion of this property not be crossed since they are planning to 
development it later?  Mr. McGeough reported that they have to be mitigated.   He does not 
believe there is a policy.      

  
 Commissioner MacMillan asked if the applicant had gotten a permit for discharge into the 

wetlands from the Army Corps of Engineers?  Mr. McGeough deferred the question to the 
applicant.       

  
 The public hearing was open and the following testimony was given. 
  

a. Raul Woerner, CSA Planning Ltd., 4497 Brownridge Terrace, Suite 101, Medford, Oregon, 
97504-9173.  Mr. Woerner reported that he was present tonight representing Stella Real 
Estate Investments, LLC.  The wetlands have expanded from what was there before and 
beyond what are shown on the local wetlands inventory.  Mr. Woerner mentioned “duets”.   
These are similar to duplexes.  In his research he discovered the Bell View project in Ashland, 
that shows a cottage like street presence, great curb appeal, individually owned units 
connected by the garage.   Mr. Woerner presented a housing prototype of a cottage court.  
This was submitted into the record.   

  
 The public hearing was closed. 
  
 Motion: Adopt the Findings as recommended by staff and direct staff to prepare the Final 

Orders for approval of PUD-14-116 and LDS-14-117 per the Staff Report dated February 5, 
2015, including Exhibits A through L, replacing Exhibits C and E with Exhibits C-1 and E-1. 

  
 Moved by: Vice Chair Miranda       Seconded by: Commissioner Fincher 
  

Page 17



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 9 

 Commissioner Schwimmer reported that in his opinion contrary to the previous Planned Unit 
Development, this Planned Unit Development clearly meets the criteria and subjective intent 
proposed by the Medford Code 10.230.  This is a very nice use of mixed-use, nice idea 
preserving the criteria contained in that Code involving preservation of open space and 
mixed-use of structures.   

  
 Voice Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  
60.        Report of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission.   
60.1 Commissioner Schwimmer reported that the Site Plan and Architectural Commission met on 

Friday, February 6, 2015.   The previously heard agenda item that we heard tonight was a 
follow-up to the Code amendment that has been approved by the Planning Commission and 
the recommendation as he previously spoke of regarding the architectural review comments.  
There was another application before the Site Plan and Architectural Commission that was 
approved.  He is unable to pull it up on his iPad and requested Ms. Akin to give the specifics 
in her report.     

  
70.        Report of the Joint Transportation Subcommittee.  None.   
  
80. Report of the Planning Department.    
80.1 Kelly Akin, Principal Planner, welcomed the new Planning Commissioners, Jared Pulver.  Mr. 

McKechnie was unable to attend tonight’s meeting and the next couple of meetings due to 
conflicts.  
 
The Planning Commission will have a study session on Monday, February 23, 2015.  The 
discussion will be about the UGBA expansion project. 
 
There is business scheduled for the Planning Commission through April.  The dates are 
Thursday, February 26, 2015, Thursday, March 12, 2015, Thursday, March 26, 2015 and April 
9, 2015.   
 
On February 5, 2015, the City Council adopted the resolution upholding the Planning 
Commission’s decision on the zone change near Lewis Park.  They have also been working on 
updating the Strategic Plan.  Ms. Akin thanked the Commissioners for attending City Council’s 
study session today.   
 
Last week the Site Plan and Architectural Commission considered the text amendment that 
the Planning Commission heard this evening.  The other item they approved was an 
expansion to an airplane hangar at the airport.   
 
There is the availability for two Commissioners to attend the APA Conference.  Ms. Akin will 
send the information to the Planning Commissioner tomorrow morning.   

  
90. Messages and Papers from Chair of Planning Commission.  None.  
  

Page 18



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 12, 2015 
 

 10 

100. Remarks from the City Attorney.  None. 
  
110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission.   
110.1 Commissioner Pulver requested that staff stress to applicants to provide exhibits as clear as 

possible.  He found some of the exhibits difficult to navigate through and trying to read street 
names.  Also, at a future study session discuss more in depth the concept of density.       

  
 Commissioner D’Alessandro reported that if the Commissioners that were unable to attend 

the City Council study session today he could bring them up-to-date if they were interested.  
Mike Montero did an eloquent job of presenting transportation options.  He did a good job of 
putting where the City could leverage them in looking at funding and things down the road.  
Mike Baker from the Oregon Department of Transportation gave a presentation about the 
viaduct seismic study that they have been awarded $3M to just do the study.  They expect to 
have results later this year to start working on the actual study.  Gary Leaming brought 
everyone up-to-date on the Phoenix interchange.  What they are going to do when they 
make closures and how they are going to route traffic getting traffic on and off I-5.  Art 
Anderson talked about the rest area welcome center that is a point of contention with the 
Ashland City Council on the water rights and the sunset date for that project looming and 
requested backup at the next meeting or positive reinforcements at the next Ashland City 
Council meeting.         

  
 Jim Huber, Planning Director reported that the City Council would like an annual study 

session with the Planning Commission.  Mr. Huber suggested that the Planning 
Commissioners and City Council representatives think of topics they would like to discuss 
during a joint study session.    

  
120. Adjournment.   
 The meeting was adjourned at 8:12 p.m. The proceedings of this meeting were digitally 

recorded and are filed in the City Recorder's office.         
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
_______________________________ 
Terri L. Rozzana 

 
________________________________ 
David McFadden 

Recording Secretary Planning Commission Chair 
  
Approved:  March 12, 2015  

  

Page 19



                                             
10. Roll Call  
10.1 Appoint two Commissioners to the Joint Transportation Subcommittee 
  
 Chair McFadden appointed Commissioner Schwimmer and Commissioner Fincher to the Joint 

Transportation Subcommittee for 2015.  
  
20. Consent Calendar/Written Communications.     
20.1 PUD-14-074/LDS-14-091/ZC-14-103 Final Orders for requests for a Planned Unit 

Development consisting of a Preliminary PUD Plan for Rockland Place and Tentative Plat for a 
31 lot single family subdivision and a zone change from County RR-5 (Rural Residential – 5 
acre minimum lot size) to SFR-10 (Single Family Residential – 10 units per gross acre) on two 
parcels totaling 4.61 acres located on the south side of Harbrooke Road, approximately 385 
feet east of North Phoenix Road, within an SFR-10/S-E (Single Family Residential – 10 units 
per gross acre / Southeast Overlay) zoning district. The zone change pertains only to 371W34 
Tax Lot 1600.  (Richard & Leslie Lovett Trust, Applicant; Richard Stevens and Associates, 
Agent). 

  
20.2 PUD-14-116/LDS-14-117 Final Orders for a Preliminary Planned Unit Development Plan, 

including proposed modifications to Land Development Code standards pertaining to specific 
lots including: 1) modification of minimum lot area, width, depth, coverage, and frontage 
standards, and 2) implementation of private streets to be utilized as shared driveway 
easements; and consideration of a tentative subdivision plat to create 41 residential lots and 
two common area lots on an 8.16 gross acres located on the east side of Thomas Road, 
approximately 800 feet north of Sunset Drive, within the SFR-6 (Single Family Residential, 6 

 MINUTES                    
Planning Commission Meeting 

February 26, 2015 
 

 
The regular meeting of the Medford Planning Commission was called to order at 5:32 p.m. in the 
Council Chambers on the above date with the following members and staff in attendance: 
 

Commissioners Present Staff 
David McFadden, Chair Jim Huber, Planning Director 
Patrick Miranda, Vice Chair Kelly Akin, Principal Planner 
Tim D’Alessandro Kevin McConnell, Deputy City Attorney 
Norman Fincher Terri L. Rozzana, Recording Secretary 
Chris MacMillan Alex Georgevitch, Acting City Engineer 
Bill Mansfield  
Jared Pulver  
Alec Schwimmer  
  

Commissioners Absent  
Mark McKechnie, Excused Absence  

Page 20



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 26, 2015 
 

 2 

dwelling units per gross acre) zone district.  (Stella Real Estate Investments, LLC, Applicant; 
CSA Planning, Ltd., Agent). 

  
 Motion: Adopt the consent calendar. 
  
 Moved by: Vice Chair Miranda          Seconded by: Commissioner D’Alessandro 
  
 Voice Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  
30. Minutes.  
30.1 Chair McFadden reported that the minutes for February 12, 2015, will be submitted at the 

March 12, 2015, Planning Commission meeting. 
  
40. Oral and Written Requests and Communications.  None.   
  
50. Public Hearing.   

 New Business 

50.1 Update Planning Commission Rules of Order.   
  
 Kelly Akin, Principal Planner, stated that there were a few minor corrections to the Rules of 

Order.  Last year the City Council dissolved the Citizens Planning Advisory Committee so the 
Rules of Order needed to be updated.   

  
 Motion: Adopt the updated Planning Commission Rules of Order. 
  
 Moved by: Commissioner Mansfield      Seconded by: Commissioner Fincher 
  
 Voice Vote: Motion passed, 8-0. 
  
60.        Report of the Site Plan and Architectural Commission.   
60.1 Commissioner Schwimmer reported that the Site Plan and Architectural Commission did not 

meet on Friday, February 20, 2015, due to no business.     
  
70.        Report of the Joint Transportation Subcommittee.  None.   
  
80. Report of the Planning Department.    
80.1 Kelly Akin, Principal Planner, reported that the Site Plan and Architectural Commission will 

meet on Friday, March 6, 2015.  There is no date for the next meeting of the Joint 
Transportation Subcommittee.   
 
The next Planning Commission study session is scheduled for Monday, March 9, 2015.  The 
discussion will be on the urban growth boundary expansion.  It is scheduled for the Planning 
Commission public hearing on Thursday, March 12, 2015.  Also, scheduled is a proposed text 
amendment that can be pushed to another study session.  The urban growth boundary 
discussion is important for staff to answer questions the Commissioners may have. 

Page 21



MINUTES - Planning Commission Meeting                                                   February 26, 2015 
 

 3 

 
The Planning Commission has business scheduled through April.  
 
Next week the City Council will hear a contract for a wetland analysis that is for the expansion 
areas in the urban growth boundary. 
 
On Thursday, March 19, 2015, City Council will hear the text amendment that the Planning 
Commission considered at their last meeting; the site plan and conditional use permit 
revision. 
 
Annually the City Council and Planning Commission have a joint study session.  Staff 
encourages the Commission to start thinking about what they might like to discuss with the 
City Council.              

  
90. Messages and Papers from Chair of Planning Commission.  None.  
  
100. Remarks from the City Attorney.  None. 
  
110. Propositions and Remarks from the Commission.  None.   
  
120. Adjournment.   
 The meeting was adjourned at 5:41 p.m. The proceedings of this meeting were digitally 

recorded and are filed in the City Recorder's office.         
 
 
Submitted by:  
 
_______________________________ 
Terri L. Rozzana 

 
________________________________ 
David McFadden 

Recording Secretary Planning Commission Chair 
  
Approved:  March 12, 2015  

  

Page 22



 

Working  with the Community  to  Shape a  Vibrant and  Exceptional City  

Lausmann Annex   •  200 South Ivy Street    •  Medford,  Oregon 97501  

Tel.  541-774-2380   •  Fax 541-618-1708  

www.ci .medford.or.us  

CI TY  OF MEDF OR D  

P L A N N I N G  D E P A R T M E N T  

STAFF REPORT 

URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY AMENDMENT (UGBA) 

Date: March 12, 2015 

   

Subject: UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment  file no. CPA-14-114 

 
 

 

Page 23



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 2 

CONTENTS 

Proposal ...................................................................................................................................................... 3 

Background ............................................................................................................................................... 3 

Amendment ............................................................................................................................................... 5 

Land Need ........................................................................................................................................... 5 

Urban Reserve ................................................................................................................................... 5 

Coarse Filter ....................................................................................................................................... 7 

External Study Areas (ESAs) ....................................................................................................... 8 

Capacity Analysis of the Urban Reserve .............................................................................. 10 

Additional Scoring ........................................................................................................................ 10 

Conceptual Plan for Urban Reserve ....................................................................................... 10 

Selection Process .......................................................................................................................... 13 

Chrissy and Prescott Parks ....................................................................................................... 13 

Summary of Amendments ......................................................................................................... 14 

Conclusions ............................................................................................................................................ 15 

Recommended Action ........................................................................................................................ 15 

Exhibit A. Proposed Amendment ................................................................................................... 16 

Exhibit B. Findings ............................................................................................................................... 22 

Exhibit C. Available Land .................................................................................................................. 69 

Exhibit D. UGBA Phase 1 Effect on Land Supply  ..................................................................... 71 

Exhibit E. Land Need ........................................................................................................................... 75 

Exhibit F. Coarse Filter Maps ........................................................................................................... 80 

Exhibit G. Capacity Analysis of the Urban Reserve ................................................................. 82 

Exhibit H. Additional Scoring Maps .............................................................................................. 83 

Exhibit I. Infrascructure Scoring Memos .................................................................................... 86 

Exhibit J. Letters from Property Owners and Agents ............................................................. 87 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 3 

PROPOSAL 

To amend the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) for the purpose of providing a twenty-
year land supply based on the City’s projected need for residential and employment 
land. The proposed changes include: expanding the Urban Growth Boundary, 
assigning General Land Use Plan (GLUP) map designations to the areas added to the 
UGB; amending the Medford Street Functional Classification Plan of the 
Transportation Element of the Comprehensive Plan to include the expansion areas; 
and amending some portions of the Urbanization and GLUP Elements of the 
Comprehensive Plan to accommodate the UGB amendment. 

BACKGROUND 

The City of Medford, as all cities in Oregon, continues to have a goal of providing 
land to accommodate its 20-year land need for housing and employment, as 
required under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 197.296. The City of Medford’s 
current UGB was adopted in 1990 and was expected to last through 2010. As 
demonstrated in the City’s Comprehensive Plan the City does not currently have a 
20-year land supply. ORS 197.296 subsection (6) recommends addressing the need 
by expanding the urban growth boundary, by increasing the developable capacity of 
the urban area, or by a combination of the two. Urban Growth Boundary 
Amendment (UGBA) Phase 1 (ISA GLUP Amendment) changed the General Land Use 
Plan (GLUP) designation of land in the existing urban area for the purpose of 
increasing its development capacity in order to accommodate some of the City’s 
projected need for residential and employment land. The outcome of UGBA Phase 1 
was the Selected Amendment Locations (SALs). The next phase, UGBA Phase 2 
(External Study Area (ESA) Boundary Amendment), seeks to amend the City’s UGB 
and make more land available for urban development. 
 
The process of amending Medford’s UGB began in the late 1990s with the start of 
the Regional Problem Solving (RPS) process. RPS was a joint effort between six local 
municipalities, Jackson County, and the State of Oregon, to determine future land 
need for the region and to determine the most appropriate locations for future 
growth. From RPS the City adopted the Regional Plan Element of the Comprehensive 
Plan. The Regional Plan Element specifies where Medford’s future growth will occur 
by identifying the urban reserve. The urban reserve areas are meant to provide a 
50-year land supply for the City. 
 
In order to determine the land need for the next twenty years the City relies on the 
Buildable Lands Inventory (adopted in February 2008), the Population Element 
(adopted November 2007), the Economic Element (adopted December 2008), and 
the Housing Element (adopted December 2010) of the Comprehensive Plan. The 
Buildable Lands Inventory determined the amount of land available within the 
existing UGB (see Exhibit C: Available Land). This total supply of land was adjusted 
to account for the effect of UGBA Phase 1 (see Exhibit D: UGBA Phase 1 Effect on 

Page 25



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 4 

Land Supply). The Population Element was taken along with the Housing and 
Economic Elements to determine the total land demand for the 20-year period. The 
demand was then subtracted from the supply to determine the total land deficit by 
individual land type over the 20-year period (see Exhibit E: Land Need). The UGB 
must be expanded by this total deficit amount in order to meet the land need for the 
20-year period. 
 
The entire urban reserve area was considered initially as part of the boundary 
expansion process. The Planning Department used a coarse filter, considering 
proximity and parcelization, to narrow the focus for further analysis from the 
available 50-year supply (see Exhibit F: Coarse Filter Maps). The properties that 
passed through the coarse filter became known as the External Study Areas (ESAs). 
Data were collected for serviceability for transportation, water and sewer for the 
ESAs (see Exhibit H: Additional Scoring Maps; and Exhibit I: Infrastructure Scoring 
Memos). The scores from each of the five factors (proximity, parcelization, 
transportation, water, and sewer) were used to guide the Planning Department’s 
recommendation concerning the location of the UGB amendment. The Planning 
Department selected areas from the ESAs to fill the land need by type, and in total, 
for the 20-year period. In addition to expanding the urban growth boundary and 
assigning GLUP map designations to the areas added to the UGB, the City proposes 
to amend the Medford Street Functional Classification Plan of the Transportation 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan to include the expansion areas and  portions of 
the Urbanization and GLUP Elements of the Comprehensive Plan to accommodate 
the UGB amendment. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 26



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 5 

AMENDMENT 

LAND NEED  

Tables 1.1 and 1.2 show the residential and employment land need by GLUP 
designation. Exhibits C–E provide more information regarding how these figure 
were derived.   

Residential  

Table 1.1. Residential Land Need in Gross1 Acres  

Plan Designation Need Plan Description 

UR 885 Low-density Residential, 4–10 units/acre 

UM 27 Medium-density Residential, 10–15 units/acre 

UH 120 High-density Residential, 15–30 units/acre 

Total Residential 1,032 

Employment  

Table 1.2. Employment Land Need in Gross Acres   

Plan Designation Need Plan Description 

SC 222 Service Commercial: office, services, medical 

GI & HI 97 General & Heavy Industrial: manufacturing 

CM  318 Commercial: retail, services 

Total Employment 637  

URBAN RESERVE 

The urban reserve was created through the Regional Problem Solving Process and 
adopted into the City’s Comprehensive Plan as part of the Regional Plan Element. 
The urban reserve provides a 50-year supply of land for future development and all 
UGB expansion for the City of Medford for the next 50 years should occur within the 
urban reserve. Per ORS 197.298, once a City has demonstrated a need to expand its 
UGB, the first priority of land for inclusion is land designated as urban reserve. 
 
The urban reserve contains a total of 6,365 acres.  Of that, 1,877 acres consist of two 
large regional parks, Chrissy Park and Prescott Park. The remaining 4,488 acres are 
intended for future development and include both buildable and non-buildable 
lands. These urban reserve areas are known as MD-1, MD-2, MD-3, MD-4, MD-5, MD-
6, MD-7 north, MD-7 mid, MD-7 south, MD-8, MD-9 south, MD-9 mid, and MD-9 
north. A map of the urban reserve is provided below (Map 2.1). 
 

 

1 
Includes streets and other infrastructure 

Page 27



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 6 

Map 2.1. Urban Reserve 

 

Page 28



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 7 

COARSE FILTER 

The City has an identified land need of 1,669 acres and an urban reserve of 4,488 
acres (excluding the two wildland park areas) from which to choose. While the 
4,488 acres includes both buildable and non-buildable acres, the total far exceeds 
the 1,669 buildable acres needed for the 20-year planning period (see Table 1.1 and 
Table 1.2). In order to determine where the City could most efficiently meet its land 
needs for the next 20 years a “coarse filter” was used. The coarse filter, which 
considered proximity and parcel size indicators of efficiency for development, 
helped to refine the area of consideration prior to completing a capacity analysis (to 
determine the number of buildable acres) and comparing urban reserve areas on a 
more detailed level. 
 
One of the best indicators for suitability for the first 20-year supply is proximity. 
Basic principles of urban planning dictate that growth will occur from the center out 
in order to avoid “leap-frog” development which leads to inefficient use of land and 
difficult and costly extensions of infrastructure. The results of the proximity analysis 
are shown on Map 10.1 in Exhibit F. 
 
The next criterion used in the coarse filter portion of the analysis is parcelization. 
Staff mapped parcel size in order to determine the amount of parcelization in each 
of the urban reserve areas. The results of the parcel size analysis are shown on Map 
10.2 in Exhibit F. The City is obligated to provide a 20-year supply of land for 
residential and economic development but is not allowed to offer anything more 
than a 20-year supply. Because of this obligation, and this constraint, it is imperative 
that the City select land that is available for development over the next 20 years. The 
development of larger tracts of land tends to have a higher return on investment 
than the development/redevelopment of smaller tracts of land.  In addition, the land 
use structure in Oregon has created a premium on rural residential acreage near the 
city limits. Because “rural” living close to town is both desirable to many, and is 
getting harder to come by, people who own these properties have little incentive to 
develop the properties to urban density standards. Once urban development 
extends to, and encroaches upon, these smaller parcels, the land becomes more 
developable both because it makes greater economic sense (utilities more readily 
available, and higher land value/larger demand) and because the property loses its 
rural feel. 

 

 

 

 

Page 29



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 8 

EXTERNAL STUDY AREAS (ESAs) 

The areas that passed through the coarse filter were labeled the External Study 
Areas (ESAs) (shown on Map 3.1 below) and were identified for further analysis. A 
brief discussion of why certain portions of the urban reserve were eliminated 
through the coarse filter process is provided below.   
 
The middle portion of MD-1 and the southeast corner of MD-5 were eliminated from 
further consideration because they scored poorly on both proximity and 
parcelization. The remainder of MD-1, the north portion of MD-2, the northeast 
corner of MD-3, MD-3 east of Foothill Rd, and all of MD-6, MD-7, MD-8, and MD-9 
had marginal composite scores for proximity and parcelization.  With the exception 
of a portion of MD-6 the urban reserve areas on the west side of interstate 5 (MD-6, 
MD-7, MD-8, & MD-9) were retained for further consideration in order to maintain a 
balance of ESAs around the existing UGB. The balanced distribution around the 
existing UGB was considered important for a number of factors, including:  

 It worked as an additional filter in the selection of parcels near existing 
development. Since urban development extends to, or near, the existing UGB in 
most places, selecting a group of parcels spread out around the UGB to the fullest 
extent possible places these parcels closer to existing urban development. 
Selecting parcels all within large groups (all of MD-5 for example) would have 
the effect of including parcels that are further away from existing development. 

 The selection of land distributed around the entire UGB adds diversity to the 
supply of land. This adds choice in development type, price point, and so on. 

 Distributing parcels around the existing UGB helps to spread the burden of 
providing services to new development. Placing all new development in a 
smaller number of areas would have the effect of overburdening the systems for 
water, sewer, transportation, etc. By providing for a larger geographic 
distribution for future development the City can allow for the increased demand 
on the existing systems to be distributed throughout the systems.   

 
The east portion of MD-1 was retained for further consideration because of its 
proximity to the existing Highway 62 route and the future Highway 62 route. The 
west portion of MD-1, the northeast corner of MD-2, the northeast corner of MD-3, 
and MD-3 east of Foothill Rd were eliminated from consideration because they all 
have marginal composite scores for proximity and parcelization and they do not 
serve to improve the transportation system by providing connections for highways 
or higher-order streets. 
 

 

 

 

Page 30



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 9 

Map 3.1. Results of Coarse Filter/External Study Areas (ESAs) 

 

Page 31



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 10 

CAPACITY ANALYSIS OF URBAN RESERVE 

From the 4,488 acres of both buildable and non-buildable land available in the 
urban reserve the ESAs, containing a total of 2,795 acres (not including Prescott 
Park and Chrissy parks), were selected.  A capacity analysis was conducted for the 
ESAs to determine the number of developable acres. The capacity analysis marked 
areas that were already developed and areas that were undevelopable. 
Undevelopable areas were those having an open space assessment (per ORS 
197.186) and those located within riparian corridors, wetlands, and slopes 
exceeding 25 percent. A total of 140 acres were classified as developed and 417 
acres were classified as unbuildable (119 because of open space assessment), 
leaving a total of 2,238 buildable acres within the ESAs. The results of the capacity 
analysis are shown on Map 11.1 in Exhibit G. 

ADDITIONAL SCORING  

The ESAs were then analyzed for serviceability for water, sewer, and transportation. 
The results of these analyses are shown in Exhibit H: Additional Scoring Maps, and 
the information used to help create the maps is shown in Exhibit I: Infrastructure 
Scoring Memos. 

CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR URBAN RESERVE 

The Regional Plan Element has a list of performance indicators listed under the 
regional obligations of Chapter 4. Section 4.1.7 requires the City to produce 
conceptual transportation plans early in the planning and development cycle in 
order to identify and protect regionally significant transportation corridors. Section 
4.1.8 requires the City to collaborate with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan Planning 
Organization, applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other affected 
agencies to produce a conceptual land use plan for the area proposed to be added to 
the UGB. The conceptual land use plan will be used to demonstrate how the City is 
meeting targets for density, land use distribution, transportation infrastructure, and 
mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly areas. The conceptual transportation and land use 
plans for all of the urban reserve, provided below (Map 4.1), has been developed by 
the City in collaboration with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization, 
applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other affected agencies. Map 4.2 
is included as it supplements the street plan with identified trails and was 
previously adopted in the Leisure Services Plan in 2006. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 11 

Map 4.1. Conceptual Plan for Urban Reserve (Higher-order Streets and Land Use) 

 

Page 33



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 12 

Map 4.2. UGB/Urban Reserve Trails Plan (adapted from Leisure Services Plan Figure 6.2)  

 

Page 34



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 13 

SELECTION PROCESS 

The results of the scoring for all five factors—proximity, parcelization, water, sewer, 
and transportation—were used to guide the decision on where to expand the City’s 
UGB. In addition to the scoring of the properties for the five factors, the City also had 
to consider the obligations of the Regional Plan Element (e.g. density, mixed-
use/walkable neighborhoods, and the conceptual plan) and the amount of land 
needed by GLUP map designation. The scored properties were not ranked on a 
parcel-by-parcel basis, but rather, areas were selected based on their scores and the 
above considerations. Overall, the mix of land uses in the area, compared to the 
City’s identified land need, was an important consideration regarding which areas to 
include in the UGB amendment. As is demonstrated in the Findings (Exhibit B 
starting on page 22), this consideration was necessary in meeting many of the 
criteria for UGB expansion.  

CHRISSY & PRESCOTT PARKS 

In addition to the standard urban reserve areas, the Regional Plan Element 
identifies two large regional park areas, MD-P Prescott and MD-P Chrissy, which 
contain Prescott Park and Chrissy Park, respectively. These areas are City-owned 
wildland parks totaling 1,877 acres. Inclusion as urban reserve was intended to 
serve as a mechanism to eventually incorporate this City property into the 
municipal boundary and give the City (rather than the County) jurisdiction over 
these parks. The two MD-P areas were not considered areas for future urban growth 
because of their classification as parkland. There is no residential, commercial, or 
industrial development planned for the MD-P acres. They present a tremendous 
recreational and open space asset to the City and the region, in addition to creating a 
buffer between the city and rural lands to the north and east. However, due to their 
location along the eastern periphery of the city and very steep topography, these 
lands satisfy little of the localized open space needs throughout the city and do not 
meet land needs for traditional urban parkland. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 35



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 14 

SUMMARY OF AMENDMENTS 

Based on the foregoing discussion, staff developed a proposal for a UGBA that meets 
the identified land need by quantity and type for the period from 2009-2029. Table 
5.1 and Map 5.2 (Exhibit A) show the full extent of the proposed UGB amendment 
which contains a total of 3,948 acres of land. 
 
In addition to expanding the urban growth boundary and assigning GLUP map 
designations to the areas added to the UGB, the City proposes to amend the Medford 
Street Functional Classification Plan of the Transportation Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan to include the expansion areas (Map 5.3, Exhibit A). This is 
being done to establish the locations of the higher-order streets identified through 
the conceptual planning process on the Street Functional Classification Plan. 
 
The proposal also includes amending some relevant portions of the Urbanization 
and GLUP Elements of the Comprehensive Plan to accommodate the UGB 
amendment and requirements of the Regional Plan (proposed text changes in 
Exhibit A). 
 
Table 5.1. Summary of Proposed UGB Amendment   
 

 Number of Acres 

Total Expansion Proposal 3,948 

Developed or Unbuildable Land 402 

Prescott Park and Chrissy Park 1,877 

Land for Future Development  
(Residential + Employment) 

1,669 

  

Residential Land Amount 1,032 

Low-Density Residential (UR) 885 

Medium-Density Residential (UM) 27 

High-Density Residential (UH) 120 
  

Employment Land Amount 637 

Service Commercial (SC) 222 

Commercial (CM) 318 

General Industrial (GI) 90 

Heavy Industrial (HI) 7 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 36



UGBA Phase 2: ESA Boundary Amendment (file no. CPA-14-114) March 12, 2015 

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 15 

CONCLUSIONS 

As discussed in the findings in Exhibit B the City has demonstrated the need for 
additional land outside of the existing UGB in order to provide the required 20-year 
supply. The proposed boundary amendment and accompanying GLUP map 
designations, Street Functional Classification Map changes, and text changes to 
applicable sections of the Comprehensive Plan meet the approval criteria for urban 
growth boundary amendments (Exhibit B).   

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Based on the findings and conclusions that all the approval criteria are met, and 
based on the testimony received in writing and at hearing(s), the Planning should 
either:  

1. Recommend approval to the City Council per the recommendations in the 
staff report dated March 12, 2015, including Exhibits A–J, or 
 

2. Direct staff to modify the proposal and findings, and return with the 
modifications at a future hearing for consideration by the Planning 
Commission.  

EXHIBITS: 

A Proposed Amendment 
B Findings 
C Available Land  
D UGBA Phase 1 Effect on Land Supply 
E Land Need 
F Coarse Filter Maps 
G Capacity Analysis of the Urban Reserve 
H Additional Scoring Maps 
I Infrastructure Scoring Memos 
J Letters from Property Owners and Agents 
 

 

Page 37



Exhibit A  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 16 

EXHIBIT A. PROPOSED AMENDMENT 
Map 5.2. Proposed GLUP Map Amendment 

 

Page 38



Exhibit A  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 17 

Map 5.3. Proposed Medford Street Functional Classification Plan Map 

 

Page 39



Exhibit A  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 18 

Proposed Text Changes 
 
The following text sections will be changed through the proposed UGB amendment. 
Proposed additions shown in Bold and proposed deletions shown in Strikethrough. 
 
 
 
URBANIZATION ELEMENT 

**** 

1. URBAN GROWTH BOUNDARY 

The Medford Urban Growth Boundary (UGB) includes land within the city and 
selected land surrounding the city that is committed to/planned for future city 
growth, the development of which is likely to require the extension of urban 
services. Land around the city within the UGB is called the unincorporated 
urbanizable area in this element.  The Medford UGB was last amended in 19902015 
through a cooperative process between the City of Medford and Jackson County. It is 
officially delineated on the Jackson County and City of Medford Comprehensive Plan 
and zoning maps.  

The Medford UGB was established to comply with the statutory requirement for 
Urban Growth Boundaries around urbanized areas to identify and separate 
urbanizable land from rural land.   

*** 

2. ANNEXATION 

The transfer of urbanizable land under county jurisdiction to city jurisdiction is 
called annexation. Chapter 222 of the Oregon Revised Statutes governs annexation 
in Oregon. According to state law, land may be annexed to a city only if it is within 
the Urban Growth Boundary, and is contiguous to the city limits. Generally, a 
majority of the registered voters and/or property owners within the area to be 
annexed must agree to the annexation, except in cases where the area is surrounded 
by land already under city jurisdiction.   

*** 

2.1 Annexation Policies 

The following are the policies of the City of Medford with respect to 
annexation: 

*** 

 
 

Page 40



Exhibit A  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 19 

2.1.7. Annexation of Property Added to the Urban Growth Boundary in 2015 
 

The City Council must find that the following conditions are met in 
order to approve an annexation of land that was added to the Urban 
Growth Boundary in 2015: 
 
1. A revised Transportation System Plan (TSP), which includes the 

area to be annexed, has been adopted by the City; 

2. A Local Wetlands Inventory (LWI), which includes the area to be 
annexed, has been adopted by the City;  

3. For the area to be annexed, all Goal 5 resources, including 
riparian corridors, historic structures/properties, deer and elk 
habitat, wetlands, and scenic views have been identified and 
protected in accordance with Goal 5; and 

4. A master plan has been submitted, and adopted into the 
Neighborhood Element, for the area to be annexed which 
demonstrates compliance with the Regional Plan by showing the 
following details: 

a. Compliance with the minimum residential density 
required by Regional Plan Element item 4.1.5.  The master 
plan must demonstrate how the planned residential 
development will meet the minimum density requirement 
of 6.6 units per acre assuming all areas within the 
development will build out to the minimum allowed 
densities. Since the required density is in excess of the 
density supported by the Housing Element (after the 
adoption of the SALs) the following are acceptable 
methods for meeting the density standard: 

i.  Committing areas to higher density zones within a 
General Land Use Plan (GLUP) designation.  For 
example, an area within the UR GLUP designation could 
be designated as SFR-10 (Single Family Residential – 10 
units per acre) which would insure a minimum density 
of 6 units per acre; and/or 

ii. Requesting GLUP map changes as part of the master 
plan approval process. This will allow for additional 
areas for medium-density and high-density 
development within the areas added to the UGB.  

Page 41



Exhibit A  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 20 

b. Compliance with the requirements of Regional Plan 
Element item 4.1.6. for mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly 
development. 

c. Compliance with the land use distribution requirements of 
Regional Plan Element item 4.1.8.(b). 

APPENDIX 1—URBAN GROWTH MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT 

This agreement was mutually adopted in 1993 by Jackson County (Ord. no. 93-31) 
and the City Medford (Ord. no. 7183 (1992); minor text correction via Ord. no. 7502 
(1993)).  

The following policies guide the administration of the Medford Urban Growth 
Boundary: 

1. An Urban Growth Boundary adopted herein, or hereinafter amended, for the 
Medford area will establish the limits of urban growth to the year 20102029. 

*** 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 42



Exhibit A  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 21 

GENERAL LAND USE PLAN (GLUP) ELEMENT 

*** 

GLUP MAP DESIGNATIONS 
 
The GLUP Map has 1312 different land use designations that are applied to all 
land within the Urban Growth Boundary (UGB). The GLUP map also identifies 
the Urban Reserves, which will not have GLUP designations applied to them 
until they are included in the UGB. These designations are defined as listed 
below.  Permitted land uses, as well as the development standards associated with 
each zoning district noted, are listed in “Article III” of the Land Development Code.  
The City’s SFR-00 (Single-Family Residential – one dwelling unit per existing lot) 
zone is permitted in all GLUP Map designations because it is considered a holding 
zone for parcels that are being converted from County to City zoning.  These parcels 
are not eligible for development to urban density or intensity until facility adequacy 
has been determined through the zone change process.  It is the City’s intent to have 
these parcels converted to zoning that is consistent with the following GLUP Map 
designations as soon as a property owner can show that urban facilities are 
adequate or will be made adequate to serve the uses permitted by the proposed 
urban zoning. 

*** 

13. Urban Growth Boundary  The City of Medford and Jackson County 
have established an Urban Growth Boundary (UGB), which delineates 
Medford’s urban and urbanizable areas. Following the 19902015 UGB 
amendment there was a total of 17,889 21,835 acres (27.95 34.12 
square miles) within the UGB including that land within the City. The 
UGB is site specific.  Since the GLUP Map does not indicate lot lines, 
the UGB is also specified on the City of Medford Zoning Map, a map 
having lot lines, so that the location of specific parcels inside or 
outside of the UGB can be determined. 

 
14. Urban Reserve  The Urban Reserve was created through the 

Regional Problem Solving (RPS) process and adopted into the 
Comprehensive Plan in the Regional Plan Element.  The method 
of establishing an urban reserve is defined in state law (see ORS 
195.137–145).  The urban reserve areas are the first priority 
supply of land when the City considers expanding its UGB. The 
urban reserve areas are meant to provide a 50-year land supply 
for the City. 

*** 

Page 43



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 22 

EXHIBIT B. FINDINGS 
 
Authority: This action is a Class “A” legislative Comprehensive Plan Amendment. 
The Planning Commission is authorized to recommend, and the City Council to 
approve, amendments to the Comprehensive Plan under Medford Municipal Code, 
sections 10.102, 10.110, 10.111, 10.122, 10.164, and 10.180.  
 
Review Criteria: Medford Municipal Code §10.184(1) refers to the Urbanization 
Element of the Comprehensive Plan for Urban Growth Boundary Amendments. This 
Urban Growth Boundary Amendment consists of two parts: the map amendments 
(Map 5.2 and Map 5.3) and the text amendments (pages 18-21). Since both portions 
are parts of the combined Urban Growth Boundary Amendment the following 
findings will apply to both the map changes (boundary adjustment/GLUP 
map/Street Functional Classification Map) and the text amendments 
(Comprehensive Plan text). 

APPROVAL CRITERIA COMPLIANCE 

Approval criteria for Urban Growth Boundary Amendments found in Section 1.2.3 
(Approval Criteria) of the Urbanization Element of the Comprehensive Plan 
 
1.2.3 Approval Criteria 
The City will base its decision for both major and minor amendments on: 

a. The standards and criteria in Goal 142, OAR 660, Division 24, and other 
applicable State Goals, Statutes, and Rules. 

b. Compliance with Medford Comprehensive Plan policies and development code 
procedures. 

c. Compliance with Jackson County’s development ordinance standards for urban 
growth boundary amendment.  Many of the findings made to satisfy 
subparagraph (a), preceding, will also satisfy this criterion. 

d. Consistency with pertinent terms and requirements of the current Urban 
Growth Management Agreement between the City and Jackson County. 

 

 

 

 

2 
Goal 14 identifies two components for amending a UGB: Land Need and Boundary Location. It also 

provides details on what should be considered for each of the two components. Goal 14 is divided into its 
two parts in the Findings below with the specific language from the goal provided in italics. 

Page 44



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 23 

*  *  *  *  * 

Urban Growth Boundary amendment approval criteria from Urbanization 
Element, Section 1.2.3  

 

Criterion a. The standards and criteria in Goal 14, OAR 660, Division 24, and 
other applicable State Goals, Statutes, and Rules. 

Goal 14 – Land Need 

Establishment and change of urban growth boundaries shall be based on the 
following: 
1. Demonstrated need to accommodate long-range urban population, consistent with 

a 20-year population forecast coordinated with affected local governments; and 

2. Demonstrated need for housing, employment opportunities, livability or uses such 
as public facilities, streets and roads, schools, parks or open space, or any 
combination of the need categories in this subsection (2). 

In determining need, a local government may specify characteristics, such as parcel 
size, topography or proximity, necessary for land to be suitable for an identified 
need. 

Prior to expanding an urban growth boundary, local governments shall 
demonstrate that land needs cannot reasonably be accommodated on land already 
inside the urban growth boundary. 

Findings 

The process of determining Medford’s land need for the next 20 years started with 
the adoption of the Population Element in 2007. This study looked at the forecasted 
population growth in Medford through 2040. The next step was the Buildable Lands 
Inventory (BLI), adopted in 2008, consistent with OAR 660-024-0050 and ORS 
197.186 and 197.296. This study identified the number of acres, in total and by type, 
available for development within the City’s current UGB. The BLI showed that there 
are approximately 2,592 gross residential acres3 and approximately 1,078 gross 
employment acres4 available for development within Medford’s UGB.  
 
The next step was the Economic Element, adopted in 2008, which considered the 
projected population growth, along with economic trends, to determine the overall 
need for employment land over the 20-year planning period. The study concluded 
that an additional 708 gross acres were needed to meet the demand for employment 
land. However, as shown in Exhibit E, this does not properly account for the excess 
supply of industrial land available within the existing UGB. When properly 
calculated (see Exhibit E) the need for employment land increases to 765 gross 
acres.   
 
3
From Housing Element Table 30 

4
From Economic Element Figure 28 

Page 45



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 24 

The next step was the Housing Element, adopted in 2010, which considered the 
projected population growth, along with housing trends, to determine the overall 
need for residential land over the 20-year planning period. The study concluded that 
an additional 996 gross acres5 were needed to meet the demand for housing and 
public and semi-public uses. 
 
OAR 660-024-0040 (10) allows for a “safe harbor” net-to-gross factor of 25% for 
streets and roads, parks and school facilities. Rather than use the safe harbor 
amount the Housing Element calculates the net-to-gross factor for streets based on 
observations of the existing residential areas in the city. According to the Housing 
Element “…the forecast shows land need in net acres.  Net acres is the amount of 
land needed for housing, not including public infrastructure (e.g. roads). Gross acres 
is the estimated amount of land needed for housing inclusive of public 
infrastructure.  The net-to-gross factor allows for conversion between net acres to 
gross acres.  The net-to-gross factor is highest (23%) for single-family detached 
dwellings, decreasing to 10% for multi-unit projects.” Parks and schools were not 
considered in the net-to-gross factor, but rather, were included in the Other 
Residential Land Needs portion of the Housing Element, which concluded that 153 
acres of park land and 20 acres of school land were needed in the UGB expansion 
area (see Table 6.1). The Other Residential Land Needs section of the Housing 
Element examines existing conditions for public and semi-public land to forecast 
future need for this land type.  

 
According to the Housing Element:  

Lands needed for public operations and facilities include lands for city 
facilities, schools, substations, and other public facilities. Land needs were 
estimated using acres per 1,000 persons for all lands of these types. 
Lands needed for parks and open space estimates use a parkland 
standard of 4.3 acres per 1,000 persons based on the level of service 
standard established in the Medford Leisure Services Plan Update (2006). 
This update includes land needed for neighborhood and community 
parks, which usually locate in residential plan designations. It does not 
include land needed for natural open space and greenways, which may 
also be located in residential plan designations (Housing Element, Page 
62). 

 

 

 

 

 

 
5
 From Housing Element Table 41 

Page 46



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 25 

Table 6.1.  Public and Semi-public Land Need (adapted from Housing Element Table 40) 

Type of Use 
Existing 

Acres 
Acres / 1000 

Persons 
Assumed Need 

(Ac/1000 Persons) 
Estimated Need per 

1000 Persons 2009-2034 

City 113 1.5 1.5 64 
City Parks 527 6.8 4.3 153 
County 36 0.5 0.5 17 
State 47 0.6 0.6 22 
Federal 26 0.3 0.3 12 
Other public agency 43 0.6 0.6 20 
Schools 265 3.4 0.6 20 
Church 159 2.1 2.1 73 
Fraternal 96 1.2 1.2 44 

     Total 1,313 17.0 11.6 425 

 
In addition to the standard urban reserve areas the Regional Plan Element identifies 
two large regional park areas, MD-P Prescott and MD-P Chrissy, which contain 
Prescott Park and Chrissy Park, respectively. These areas are City-owned wildland 
parks totaling 1,877 acres. Inclusion as urban reserve was intended to serve as a 
mechanism to eventually incorporate this City property into the City boundary to 
allow the City to have jurisdiction of the parks. The two MD-P areas were not 
considered areas for future urban growth because of their classification as parkland. 
There is no residential, commercial, or industrial development planned for the MD-P 
acres. They present a tremendous recreational and open space asset to the City and 
the region, in addition to creating a buffer between the city and rural lands to the 
north and east. However, due to their location along the eastern periphery of the 
city and very steep topography, these lands satisfy little of the localized open space 
needs throughout the city and do not meet land needs for traditional urban 
parkland. 
 
Through the studies adopted into the respective elements of the Comprehensive 
Plan, the City of Medford demonstrated a deficit in the supply of land within its 
existing UGB, for all types of uses, over the next 20 years. ORS 197.296 subsection 
(6) recommends addressing the need by expanding the urban growth boundary, by 
increasing the developable capacity of the urban area, or by a combination of the 
two. Urban Growth Boundary Amendment (UGBA) Phase 1 (ISA GLUP Amendment) 
sought to change the General Land Use Plan designation of land in the existing urban 
area for the purpose of increasing its development capacity in order to 
accommodate some of the City’s projected need for residential and employment 
land. UGBA Phase 1 resulted in more efficient use within the UGB in the following 
ways: 

 It took surplus industrial land (land in excess of the need for the next 20 years) 
and converted it to commercial land. This resulted in the accommodation of a 
larger portion of the employment need within the existing UGB;  

Page 47



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 26 

 The conversion of industrial to commercial also helped to increase the likelihood 
of both commercial and industrial development over the next 20 years by 
placing these uses in more appropriate locations. There is strong development 
pressure for commercial uses on the industrial land nearer the center of the city, 
near major transportation routes. This pressure makes the land less likely to 
develop with industrial use. The swapping of land types places commercial 
designations on tracts of land nearer the center of the city while allowing the 
City to designate more land near the outside of the urban area, and still near 
major transportation routes, for industrial development; 

 The City was able to shift some of the residential density called for in the 
Housing Element, and required by the Regional Plan, to the inside of the urban 
area. By shifting density inward the City is providing for a more efficient use of 
land and of public infrastructure;  

 While UGBA Phase 1 resulted in a 58-acre conversion of land from residential to 
employment GLUP designations, the total residential land need only increased 
by 36 acres; 

 The conversion of some residential land to employment land decreased the 
overall land need due to the fact that some of this land was not identified as 
meeting any portion of the future residential land need because it was classified 
as developed for residential. Because this land is expected to redevelop with 
commercial uses it is now being counted toward meeting a portion of the 
employment land need; and   

 The shifting of density inward allows for a more efficient use of land within the 
city now, rather than relying on redevelopment to higher densities in the future. 
This also helps to provide opportunities for increased densities in the UGB 
expansion area because a larger percentage of the forecasted population over 
the next 20 years can be accommodated within the existing boundary. This could 
result in a slower expansion into the newly added areas, which would allow for 
policy changes in the future should the market shift toward higher density 
development. The density shift also helps to meet the obligations of the Regional 
Transportation Plan. 

 
UGBA Phase 1 resulted in a decreased land need for the City. Before these 
intensification measures, a total of 1,761 gross acres were needed outside of the 
existing UGB. After UGBA Phase 1, a total of 1,669 gross acres are needed, a 
reduction of 92 acres. 
 
Regional Plan Element 4.1.5 requires a minimum density of 6.6 units per gross acre 
for all newly annexed areas for the years 2010 through 2035. The aggregate average 
density of the residential land need, determined by the Housing Element (see 
Exhibit E, Table 9.2), was 6.9 units per gross acre (see Table 6.2. below). Some of this 
density was then shifted into the existing UGB through UGBA Phase 1. This density 
shift resulted in an increased need for UR (Urban Low-Density Residential) and a 

Page 48



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 27 

decreased need for UM (Urban Medium-Density Residential) and UH (Urban High-
Density Residential) in the expanded UGB. While this density shift helped to 
accomplish a number of positive benefits it also makes meeting the minimum 
density requirement of the Regional Plan more difficult. With the revised ratios of 
residential land types in the UGB expansion area the average densities for each of 
the residential land types alone will not result in a density of 6.6 units per acre or 
above. 

Table 6.2. Average Density from Housing Element (See Exhibit E)  

 
Acres Density Total DU 

 
UR 465 4.8 2,233 

 
UM 39 12.8 498 

 
UH 66 18.1 1,185 

 
Total 570 

 
3,916 

 
Density 

   
6.9 dwelling units/acre 

 
The Housing Element (2010) provides an accurate representation of the City’s 
housing need over the next 20 years. The Regional Plan (2012) imposes a density 
standard that is in excess of the density supported by the Housing Element now that 
the intensification measures of UGBA Phase 1 are completed.  In addition, the 
Regional Plan requires a density of 7.6 units per gross acre for all newly added areas 
for the years 2036 to 2050. In order to reconcile the two the City will require a 
master plan to be submitted, showing compliance with the Regional Plan obligations 
for density and land use distribution, prior to annexation for any of the land added 
through this UGB amendment process. Acceptable methods for meeting the density 
standards will include: 

 Committing areas to higher-density zones within a General Land Use Plan 
(GLUP) designation. For example, an area within the UR GLUP designation could 
be designated as SFR-10 (Single-Family Residential – 10 units per acre) which 
would insure a minimum density of 6 units per acre. By establishing “pre-
zoning” within the established GLUP designations the residential density for the 
area can be moved higher than the minimum, or even average, density that the 
GLUP could accomplish; and/or 

 Requesting GLUP map changes as part of the master plan approval process. This 
will allow for additional areas for medium-density and high-density 
development within the areas added to the UGB. This technique will allow for 
more flexibility in meeting the density obligations of the Regional Plan without 
imposing a housing mix that is not consistent with the Housing Element. This 
will allow for flexibility in housing types as the market shifts toward higher-
density housing while also setting the stage for the future density standard of 7.6 
units per gross acre required by the Regional Plan. This approach will also help 
to address the affordable housing need identified in the Housing Element. By 
adding additional high-density housing throughout the UGB (in the existing UGB 
through the SALs and in the newly added areas by allowing for GLUP changes to 

Page 49



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 28 

higher density), the City is providing for more high-density housing, which is 
needed to provide more affordable housing within Medford, a need identified in 
the Housing Element but not subsequently addressed. 

Conclusions 

UGBA Phase 1 (the SALs) converted surplus industrial land to commercial land 
which allowed for more of Medford’s need for employment land to be 
accommodated within its existing UGB. The conversion also resulted in the 
increased likelihood of a larger amount of Medford’s employment land need being 
met within the existing UGB by more appropriately locating both commercial and 
industrial land. While these adopted efficiency measures helped to address a 
portion of the City’s employment land need, an additional 637 gross acres of 
employment land outside of the existing UGB are needed. The proposed UGB 
expansion will allow the City to meet its identified need for employment land. 
 
The Housing Element provides for an adequate land supply at a realistic housing 
mix for the planning horizon.  In addition to land for housing, the Element accounts 
for land needed for streets and other utilities, and for public and semi-public uses, 
which usually occur on residentially zoned properties. The residential density 
requirements of the Regional Plan were added to the Comprehensive Plan after the 
adoption of the Housing Element. By requiring master plans for all of the areas 
being added to the UGB prior to annexation, the City can reconcile the Housing 
Element with the Regional Plan and can insure that the residential density 
standards are being met. The required master plans must demonstrate compliance 
with the minimum density standards and with the land use distributions required 
by the Regional Plan. 
 
Goal 10 requires that “plans shall encourage the availability of adequate numbers of 
needed housing units at price ranges and rent levels which are commensurate with 
the financial capabilities of Oregon households and allow for flexibility of housing 
location, type, and density.” By allowing for some residential areas to be up-GLUPed 
(from a lower-density residential GLUP to a higher-density residential GLUP) the 
City is providing for more flexibility of housing types in the UGB expansion areas 
while also helping to increase the supply of higher-density housing, which is needed 
to meet the demand for low-income housing in the City. 
 
The Other Residential Land Needs of the Residential Element identified a need for 
153 gross acres of additional parkland for neighborhood and community parks, 
outside of the existing UGB. The Regional Plan Element also includes two large 
wildland park areas that are owned by the City. These areas, Chrissy and Prescott 
parks, are intended to provide for both recreational and open space opportunities 
for the City and for the region. While both help to meet the recreational needs for 
the City these are two different land types (neighborhood and community park vs. 
regional/wildland park and open space) that provide two discreet types of uses for 
the City. 

Page 50



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 29 

After adopting the efficiency measures from UGBA Phase 1 the City needs 1,032 
gross acres of land outside of the existing UGB to meet its needs for residential and 
public and semi-public land. The proposed UGB expansion will allow the City to 
meet its identified need for these land types. 
 
Goal 14 – Boundary Location 

The location of the urban growth boundary and changes to the boundary shall be 
determined by evaluating alternative boundary locations consistent with ORS 197.298 
and with consideration of the following factors: 

1. Efficient accommodation of identified land needs; 

Findings 

Per ORS 197.298, once a City has demonstrated a need to expand its UGB, the first 
priority of land for inclusion is land designated as urban reserve. No other type of 
lower priority land should be considered for inclusion unless the land need exceeds 
the supply of land within the urban reserve. In this case, Medford’s urban reserve 
provides for a roughly 50-year supply of land.  
 

The City needed to select land to meet the need for the next 20 years from the 
available 50-year supply within the urban reserve. The purpose of the coarse filter 
was to select land that could most efficiently accommodate the City’s identified land 
need. Proximity and parcelization were used as indicators of efficiency for 
development. Proximity helps to indicate current and short-term pressure for 
development as well as efficiency for the extension of services. Parcelization is also 
an indicator of both availability for development and the ability to develop an area 
in an efficient, coordinated way. More detail on the coarse filter process can be 
found in the Coarse Filter portion of the Proposed Map Amendment section on page 
7 above and maps of the coarse filter results can be found in Exhibit F. 
 
Conclusions 

The City only considered first-priority land (land within the urban reserve) for 
inclusion per ORS 197.298. Since there is more than enough land within the urban 

reserve to meet the land need over the next 20 years, no lower priority land was 

considered for inclusion. The coarse filter used by the City eliminated land from 
consideration that would not result in the most efficient accommodation of the 
identified land need. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 51



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 30 

2. Orderly and economic provision of public facilities and services; 

Findings 

The External Study Areas (ESAs) were made up of the properties that passed 
through the coarse filter. Since the “efficient accommodation of identified land 
needs” is set as the first priority, any area that did meet our measure for efficiency 
(the coarse filter) was eliminated from further consideration prior to further study 
on the ESAs. Once the ESAs were identified a capacity analysis was conducted 
(Exhibit F) similar to the Buildable Lands Inventory following the procedures of 
OAR 660-024-0050 and ORS 197.186 and 197.296 in determining buildable lands. 
Additional data were then collected for the ESAs regarding the serviceability for 
water, sewer, and transportation. This was done to measure the ability to provide 
public facilities and services in an orderly and economic fashion. Maps of the 
additional scoring results can be found in Exhibit H and the scoring memos provided 
by the service providers are attached as Exhibit I. 
 
In the case of transportation there are major system improvements needed 
regardless of where the boundary is expanded. Some areas had a greater negative 
effect on the system than others based on existing infrastructure, network 
connections, and traffic patterns. 
 
The scoring for water serviceability came from staff at the Medford Water 
Commission. The scoring memo they provided was very thorough and detailed and 
made for easy conversion to Planning staff’s scoring map. There were a couple 
requests to change the water scoring map received by Planning after the map was 
made public at the October 2014 open house. The Medford Water Commission 
reviewed the requests and ultimately decided that the scores that were provided 
originally were consistent with the scoring methodology used for all of the ESAs and 
that those scores appropriately represented the comparative ease/difficulty of 
providing service based on current conditions. Their response is included with the 
scoring memos in Exhibit I. 
 
The scoring of sewer serviceability was a little different because there are two 
service providers within the Urban Reserve. The comments received initially from 
the two providers were very different, which made comparative scoring difficult. 
Planning staff took those comments and attempted to rank all of the ESAs (both City 
and RVS service areas) based on those comments alone. Once Planning staff had a 
map done a meeting was held with the representatives from the City and RVS who 
provided the initial comments.  
 
Planning staff and the representatives from both sewer service providers discussed 
the draft scoring map and found that Planning’s scoring was off in many areas. In 
general RVS viewed all areas within the ESAs as either easy or relatively easy to 
serve. Even the need for additional pump stations was viewed as a minor part of the 
standard operations of the district. Conversely, the City of Medford sewer system is 

Page 52



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 31 

in need of major system upgrades that for the most part are not currently funded. 
Any additional demand on the system, regardless of where it is placed within the 
ESAs, will require additional investment to improve downstream capacity. Some 
areas were worse than others and so they were ranked from poor to moderate 
based on input from the City sewer representative. Both sewer representatives were 
satisfied with the new map before the meeting was over. The information obtained 
from the two services providers is the most accurate, up-to-date information 
available for our analysis. The ability for the two providers to discuss their system 
operations and needs in the same room provided the comparative analysis across 
both systems in all portions of the ESAs.  
 
Policy differences between the two service providers were used in the analysis and 
helped to determine scores for the whole area. The willingness to use pump stations 
to provide service to an area is a good example in policy differences: RVS is much 
more willing to use pump stations in its system than the City of Medford is. 
 
The results of the scoring for all five factors—proximity, parcelization, water, sewer, 
and transportation—were used to guide the decision on where to expand the City’s 
UGB. In addition to the scoring of the properties for the five factors the City also had 
to consider the obligations of the Regional Plan Element. The Regional Plan requires 
the City to collaborate with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization, 
applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other affected agencies to 
produce a conceptual land use plan for the area proposed to be added to the UGB. 
The conceptual land use plan must be used to demonstrate how the City is meeting 
targets for density, land use distribution, transportation infrastructure, and mixed-
use/pedestrian-friendly areas. The scored properties were not ranked on a parcel-
by-parcel basis, but rather, areas were selected based on their scores for the five 
factors and based on the area’s ability to meet Regional Plan obligations. The mix of 
land uses in the area was an important consideration regarding the orderly and 
economic provision of public facilities and services. 

Conclusions 

By using the scores of the five factors, and considering an area’s ability to meet the 
City’s projected need by GLUP designation, and the Regional Plan obligations, rather 
than comparing properties on a parcel-by-parcel basis, the City proposes to expand 
its UGB in a way that will provide for the orderly and economic provision of public 
facilities and services. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 53



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 32 

3. Comparative environmental, social, economic, and energy (ESEE) consequences; 

Findings—Environmental 

One of the components of the coarse filter was proximity. Selecting parcels closer to 
the existing UGB not only helps to maximize the efficiency of public infrastructure, it 
helps the environment by reducing motor vehicle trips6. A more compact urban area 
with mixed-use neighborhoods7 helps to promote the development and use of 
transit8. Density and distance both play key roles in developing and maintaining 
public transit options9. A more compact urban area with mixed-use neighborhoods 
also provides greater opportunities to invest in facilities for pedestrians and 
bicyclists, while at the same time making walking and biking more viable 
transportation options. The more compact urban area with mixed-use 
neighborhoods helps to reduce the amount of pollution caused by motor vehicle 
traffic by reducing the number of motor vehicle miles traveled; both by providing 
alternative modes of transportation and by reducing the distance traveled between 
home, work, shopping, recreation, and so forth. 
 
The selecting of parcels close-in to the existing UGB also allows for the continued 
rural use of the properties nearer the edge of the urban reserve. Unused properties 
in the outer fringe of the urban reserve also help to benefit the City and the 
environment by acting as a buffer between urban uses and rural uses and/or natural 
areas. In contrast, selecting properties nearer the outside edge of the urban reserve 
would have the effect of disrupting the use of those properties and of the properties 
closer to the existing UGB. By reducing the impact on the urban reserve areas not 
being proposed for inclusion, the City is limiting the amount of displacement of rural 
uses in the urban reserve, thus minimizing the impact on lands outside of it. 
 
The City has regulations in place to guide the development and/or protection of 
environmentally sensitive areas such as steep slopes and riparian corridors. These 
rules will be extended to areas added to the UGB once annexed to the City. The City 
must also adopt a revised Local Wetland Inventory (LWI) for the areas added to the 
UGB through this proposal. The LWI will identify wetlands and determine which 
have local significance. A wetland protection ordinance will then be adopted to 
protect locally significant wetlands from development. This work will be completed 
once the final boundary of the UGB is determined. The LWI and wetland protection 
regulations must both be adopted prior to the annexation of any of the areas added 
to the UGB through this amendment (see proposed text changes on pages 18-21). 
 
 
6 

For reference on pollution from automobiles see «http://www.ucsusa.org/clean_vehicles/why-clean-
cars/air-pollution-and-health/cars-trucks-air-pollution.html#.VId3NNpOWUk»  
7 

The Regional Plan requires the development of mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly areas. 
8
 For reference on the benefits of mixed-use development see 

«http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/planning/mixeduse.aspx» 
9 

For reference on the benefits of transit see http://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2011/02/11/public-
transportation-key-to-transforming-communities» 

Page 54

http://www.ucsusa.org/clean_vehicles/why-clean-cars/air-pollution-and-health/cars-trucks-air-pollution.html#.VId3NNpOWUk
http://www.ucsusa.org/clean_vehicles/why-clean-cars/air-pollution-and-health/cars-trucks-air-pollution.html#.VId3NNpOWUk
http://www.mrsc.org/subjects/planning/mixeduse.aspx
http://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2011/02/11/public-transportation-key-to-transforming-communities
http://www.usnews.com/news/articles/2011/02/11/public-transportation-key-to-transforming-communities


Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 33 

Conclusions—Environmental 

Environmental impacts were a key consideration during the adoption of the urban 
reserve. Now that the urban reserve is in place and the City must select its future 
UGB from the urban reserve areas, the biggest environmental consideration is 
proximity. All of the urban reserve area will be added to the UGB and made available 
for urbanization eventually, but relative environmental impacts must be considered 
when determining which properties to include in the UGB at this time. The 
urbanization of any of this area will have some effect on the environment but the 
magnitude of the effect has been minimized by selecting parcels near the existing 
UGB. The environmental protection provisions in the City Code will be extended to 
the areas added to the UGB when annexed. Both the LWI and wetland protection 
regulations for these newly added areas must be adopted prior to the annexation of 
any of the areas. 

Findings—Energy 

The Regional Plan requires the development of mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly 
areas. This type of development encourages the use of travel modes other than 
driving, leading to a reduction in vehicle miles travelled. One of the components of 
the coarse filter was proximity. Selecting parcels closer to the existing UGB not only 
helps to maximize the efficiency of public infrastructure, it has the effect of reducing 
energy use by reducing motor vehicle trips. A more compact urban area, with 
mixed-use neighborhoods, helps to promote the development and use of transit. 
Density and distance both play key roles in developing and maintaining public 
transit options. A more compact urban area with mixed-use neighborhoods also 
provides greater opportunities to invest in facilities for pedestrians and bicyclists, 
while at the same time making walking and biking more viable transportation 
options. The more compact urban area with mixed-use neighborhoods help to 
reduce energy consumption by reducing the number of motor vehicle miles 
traveled, both by providing alternative modes of transportation and by reducing the 
distance traveled between home, work, shopping, recreation, and so forth. 

The process of selecting where to expand the UGB included a consideration 
regarding where anticipated higher-order streets could be connected to other 
planned and existing higher-order streets based on areas added to the UGB. This 
process helped to identify where the inclusion of areas currently in the urban 
reserve could help to provide key urban services to properties currently within the 
UGB. Some areas, such as portions of MD-2 and MD-3, provide the ability to connect 
higher-order streets and to create a grid pattern of streets that will help to spread 
traffic within the existing UGB in those areas. This distribution of traffic will help to 
relieve congestion on existing traffic infrastructure. Therefore these areas have a 
positive energy consequence through their inclusion in the UGB because of their 
ability to reduce congestion within the existing UGB. 

 

Page 55



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 34 

Conclusions—Energy 

When considering where to expand the UGB mixed-use development and proximity 
have the greatest impact on the use and/or conservation of energy. The fact that the 
needed houses and jobs would be efficiently contained in the current urban area 
and in areas close to the existing UGB would have generally positive energy 
consequences due to the increased possibility of non-motorized travel modes 
between trip generators and decreasing overall “vehicle miles travelled” (VMT). 
Reid Ewing, a transportation planning researcher and professor at the University of 
Utah, “looked at all the available evidence and concluded that sprawling 
communities that require car trips to meet most daily needs exhibit 20–40% higher 
VMT than more compact, mixed-used, and walkable neighborhoods.”10 And as noted 
in an online edition of “The Atlantic” magazine11: 

We [the US] continue to lead advanced economies in per-capita 
carbon emissions, 28 percent of which come from transportation. But 
even if the crunchy granola argument isn't good enough to make you 
see the benefits of public transit, consider that trains, trams, buses, 
and the like reduces traffic congestion, which is good for the life 
satisfaction of everybody behind the wheel, since science shows long 
commutes make us unhappy.12 

 
Findings—Economic 

The City of Medford, as all cities in Oregon, continues to have a goal of providing 
land to accommodate its 20-year land need for housing and employment, as 
required under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 197.296. The City of Medford’s 
current UGB was adopted in 1990 and was expected to last through 2010. As 
demonstrated throughout this document, the City does not currently have a 20-year 
land supply and needs to meet the projected demand for employment and 
residential land over the 20-year planning period. ORS 197.296 subsection (6) 
recommends addressing the need by expanding the urban growth boundary, by 
increasing the developable capacity of the urban area, or by a combination of the 
two. UGBA Phase 1 sought to increase the development capacity of land within the 
existing UGB in order to accommodate some of the City’s projected need for 
residential and employment land. This phase, UGBA Phase 2 (External Study Area 
(ESA) Boundary Amendment), seeks to amend the City’s UGB and make more land 
available for urban development. 
 

10
 Excerpt from website «http://streetswiki.wikispaces.com/Vehicle+Miles+Traveled» (retrieved 2013-11-

20), summarizing information from Ewing’s book titled Growing Cooler: The Evidence on Urban 
Development and Climate Change. Chicago: Urban Land Institute, 2007. 
11

 Excerpted from «http://www.theatlantic.com/business/archive/2013/11/the-case-against-cars-in-1-
utterly-entrancing-gif/281615/» (retrieved 2013-11-20) 
12

 For reference to commuting studies see «http://www.economist.com/blogs/gulliver/2011/06/perils-
commuting» 

Page 56



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 35 

UGBA Phase 1 had a number of positive effects on the developable capacity within 
the existing UGB. One of which, the conversion of industrial land to commercial land, 
also helped to increase the likelihood of both commercial and industrial 
development over the next 20 years by placing these uses in more appropriate 
locations. There is strong development pressure on the industrial land in the city 
core, near major transportation routes, to be used for commercial uses. This 
pressure makes the land less likely to develop with industrial use. The swapping of 
land types places commercial designations on appropriate tracts of land within the 
city core while allowing the City to designate more land near the outside of the 
urban area, but still near major transportation routes, for industrial development. In 
choosing where to expand its UGB, the City of Medford considered the suitability of 
employment land for each of the employment types.  For example, large tracts of 
General Industrial, Service Commercial, and Commercial land were selected 
between North Phoenix Road and Interstate 5, near the future overpass and 
connection with South Stage Road to the west.  This area is planned for a future 
employment center for the City and for the region. In other cases smaller tracts of 
employment land were designated in residential areas in order to promote the 
development of mixed-use neighborhoods.  
 

In addition to appropriately locating land types, the proposed UGB expansion will 
also have the effect of increasing the availability of all types of urban land. The 
increased supply of land should have the effect of spurring economic development 
and improving the local economy by reducing the cost of land. However, this will 
only be the case if the urbanizable land is held by a large enough number of owners 
to promote competition and protect against monopoly and price-fixing13. Parcel size  
was one of the components of the coarse filter. It was used as an indicator of 
parcelization which was used to compare the relative availability of the land within 
the urban reserve for development. While it is important for the City to select land 
that is available for development, the selection of only large parcels of land would 
have the effect of concentrating the supply of land among a relatively small number 
of owners. By selecting some of the smaller parcels, primarily on the west side of 
Interstate 5, the City is effectively distributing the supply of developable land to a 
greater number of property owners. 
 
Staff also selected parcels distributed around the existing UGB for inclusion in the 
UGB expansion area. This was done in part to help provide variety in the locations 
and types of land available for development and to help distribute the impact of 
additional development throughout infrastructure systems.   
 
 
 
 

13
 For reference on the effects of monopoly on the supply and demand curve see 

«http://www.cliffsnotes.com/more-subjects/economics/monopoly/demand-in-a-monopolistic-market» 

Page 57



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 36 

Conclusions—Economic 

UGBA Phase 1 had the effect of more appropriately locating employment land. 
Through careful consideration of the available land within the urban reserve, and 
the land need by employment type, the City has selected land to efficiently meet the 
employment need over the 20-year period. 

The increased availability of all types of urbanizable land should have a positive 
effect on the local economy by decreasing the cost of developable land. This can only 
occur if the land is held by a large enough number of owners to promote 
competition. By selecting a mix of both large and small parcels the City will provide 
an adequate supply of developable land while helping to distribute the supply to a 
greater number of property owners. 
 
Findings—Social 

The things that influence the scores for the environmental, energy, and economic 
factors—proximity, mixed-use development, and availability of developable land— 
also influence the social effect of the proposal. These factors, along with other 
factors influencing the social effect of the proposal, will be discussed individually. 
 

Traffic: One of the components of the coarse filter was proximity. Selecting 
parcels closer to the existing UGB not only helps to maximize the efficiency of 
public infrastructure, it has the social benefit of reducing motor vehicle trips. A 
more compact urban area, with mixed-use neighborhoods, helps to promote the 
development and use of transit. Density and distance both play key roles in 
developing and maintaining public transit options. A more compact urban area 
also provides greater opportunities to invest in facilities for pedestrians and 
bicyclists, while at the same time making walking and biking more viable 
transportation options. The more compact urban area helps to reduce the 
amount of motor vehicle traffic by reducing the number of motor vehicle miles 
traveled; both by providing alternative modes of transportation and by reducing 
the distance traveled between home, work, shopping, recreation, etc. 
 
Land Availability: In addition to appropriately locating land types the proposed 
UGB expansion will also have the effect of increasing the availability of all types 
of urban land. The increased supply of land should have the effect of spurring 
economic development and improving the local economy by reducing the cost of 
land. However, this will only be the case if the urbanizable land is held by a large 
enough number of owners to promote competition and protect against 
monopoly and price-fixing. Parcel size was one of the components of the coarse 
filter. It was used as an indicator of parcelization which was used to compare the 
relative availability of the land within the urban reserve for development. While 
it is important for the City to select land that is available for development the 
selection of only large parcels of land would have the effect of concentrating the 
supply of land among a relatively small number of owners. By selecting some of 

Page 58



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 37 

the smaller parcels, primarily on the west side of Interstate 5, the City is 
effectively distributing the supply of developable land to a greater number of 
property owners. 
 
Relative Cost of Development: The finding for the “Orderly and economic 
provision of public facilities and services,” above are pertinent here as well. 
Since the cost of development is oftentimes passed on to the consumer through 
increased costs, and to the general population through increased service rates 
and increased taxes, selecting properties with the lowest relative cost of 
development has a positive social effect. 
 
The External Study Areas (ESAs) were made up of the properties that passed 
through the coarse filter. Since the “efficient accommodation of identified land 
needs” is set as the first priority, any area that did not meet the measure for 
efficiency (the coarse filter) was eliminated from further consideration prior to 
further study on the ESAs. Once the ESAs were identified a capacity analysis was 
conducted. Additional data were then collected for the ESAs regarding the 
serviceability for water, sewer, and transportation. This was done to measure 
the ability to provide public facilities and services in an orderly and economical 
fashion. 
 
The results of the scoring for all five factors—proximity, parcelization, water, 
sewer, and transportation—were used to guide the decision on where to expand 
the City’s UGB. In addition to the scoring of the properties for the five factors the 
City also had to consider the obligations of the Region Plan Element, adopted in 
2012. The Regional Plan requires the City to collaborate with the Rogue Valley 
Metropolitan Planning Organization, applicable irrigation districts, Jackson 
County, and other affected agencies to produce a conceptual land use plan for 
the area proposed to be added to the UGB. The conceptual land use plan must be 
used to demonstrate how the City is meeting targets for density, land use 
distribution, transportation infrastructure, and mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly 
areas. The scored properties were not ranked on a parcel-by-parcel basis, but 
rather, areas were selected based on their scores for the five factors and based 
on the area’s ability to meet Regional Plan obligations. The mix of land uses in 
the area was an important consideration regarding the orderly and economic 
provision of public facilities and services. 
 
Staff also selected parcels distributed around the existing UGB for inclusion in 
the UGB expansion area. This was done in part to help provide variety in the 
locations and types of land available for development and to help distribute the 
impact of additional development throughout infrastructure systems.   
 
Planned Neighborhoods: Rather than provide for individual land types on 
segregated portions of the urban reserve, most of the areas selected provide for 
an integrated mix of uses. By selecting areas that are conceptually planned for a 

Page 59



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 38 

variety of uses the City is not only meeting the Regional Plan requirement for 
mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods, but is also setting the stage for a 
type of neighborhood development that helps to improve public health and 
community cohesiveness.14 
 
Compatibility: By requiring each area to be master planned prior to annexation 
the City will have the opportunity to consider the compatibility of the 
development with existing uses and other planned uses in the vicinity. The 
master planning process will also insure that the residential density and other 
requirements of the Regional Plan are met. 
 

Conclusions—Social 

The social consequences of the selected boundary location are positive relative to 
other boundary location alternatives. The selected boundary location helps to 
minimize the effect that increased development will have on transportation by 
helping to promote the reduction of vehicle miles traveled. The selected boundary 
location has a positive effect on land availability by increasing the supply of all 
urbanizable land types and by selecting land that is both available for development 
and held by a large enough number of property owners to promote competition in 
the market. The selected boundary location was selected in large part due to its 
relative cost of development compared to the alternatives. The selected boundary 
location and the selected land-use distributions help to promote mixed-
use/pedestrian-friendly neighborhoods, which have a number of social benefits. 
Compatibility between development on these newly added areas and existing uses 
will be considered during the master plan process, prior to annexation.  
 
Conclusions—overall  

On balance the environmental, social, economic, and energy (ESEE) consequences of 
the selected boundary are positive compared to other alternatives. The biggest 
factors in having a favorable ESEE are proximity to the existing UGB and a large 
enough distribution of ownership to promote competition in the market for 
urbanizable land. The City has selected land from its urban reserve that is both close 
to the existing UGB (and existing development) and comprised of a large enough 
number of parcels to help promote competition in the market for urbanizable land. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14
 For reference on the benefits of mixed-use development see 

«http://www.wri.org/blog/2014/07/people-oriented-cities-mixed-use-development-creates-social-and-
economic-benefits» 

Page 60



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 39 

4. Compatibility of the proposed urban uses with nearby agricultural and forest 
activities occurring on farm and forest land outside the UGB. 

Findings 

The selecting of parcels close-in to the existing UGB allows for the continued rural 
use of the properties nearer the outer edge of the urban reserve. The lower-
intensity use of properties in the outer fringe can act as a buffer between urban uses 
and farm and forest uses outside of the UGB. 
 
Regional Plan Element, 4.1.10 requires the use of agricultural buffers to separate 
urban uses from agricultural uses. The City adopted code that applies to land in the 
urban growth boundary that is added from the urban reserve shown in the Regional 
Plan (City Code Section 10.802, Urban–Agricultural Conflict in Urban Reserve, 
August 16, 2012). 
 
Conclusions 

By selecting parcels near the existing UGB for inclusion into the UGB the City is 
leaving properties on the outer edge of the urban reserve to help as a buffer 
between urban uses and agricultural and forest activities occurring on land outside 
of the UGB. Furthermore, Municipal Code Section 10.802 requires conflict mitigation 
(including buffers) between urban uses and agricultural uses. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 61



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 40 

Urban Growth Boundary amendment approval criteria from Urbanization 
Element, Section 1.2.3  

Criterion a. continued: The standards and criteria in Goal 14, OAR 660, 
Division 24, and other applicable State Goals, 
Statutes, and Rules. 

OAR 660 

Oregon Administrative Rule (OAR) 660 is directed at the work of the Department of 
Land Conservation and Development (DLCD) and contains Rules for how to 
implement the applicable Statutes relating to the mission of DLCD. There are several 
sections of OAR 660 which apply to the adoption of individual Comprehensive Plan 
Elements. Each Comprehensive Plan Element being relied upon to support this UGB 
amendment (e.g., the Economic Element) was found to be consistent with all 
applicable portions of OAR 660 at the time of their adoption. Rather than repeat 
those findings here those findings are included in the record, and findings, for this 
proposed UGB amendment, through reference. 
 
The proposed amendment’s compliance with applicable portions of OAR 660 has 
been discussed, in large part, in the proceeding text. Any applicable portions of OAR 
660, not already discussed, will be discussed below. 
 
Division 24 

Division 24 deals with Urban Growth Boundaries. Most of the applicable portions of 
Division 24 have already been covered in the Goal 14 findings above. These include: 
Population Forecasts; Land Need; Land Inventory and Response to Deficiency; and 
Boundary Location Alternatives Analysis. The following portions of OAR 660-024-
0020 (Adoption or Amendment of a UGB) also apply and will be discussed as 
indicated: 
(1) All statewide goals and related administrative rules are applicable when 
establishing or amending a UGB, except as follows: 
(b) Goals 3 and 4 are not applicable; {This is covered under Goal 3 and Goal 4 
below} 
(c) Goal 5 and related rules under OAR chapter 660, division 23, apply only in areas 
added to the UGB, except as required under OAR 660-023-0070 and 660-023-0250; 
{This is covered under Goal 5 below} 
(d) The transportation planning rule requirements under OAR 660-012-0060 need 
not be applied to a UGB amendment if the land added to the UGB is zoned as 
urbanizable land, either by retaining the zoning that was assigned prior to inclusion 
in the boundary or by assigning interim zoning that does not allow development 
that would generate more vehicle trips than development allowed by the zoning 
assigned prior to inclusion in the boundary; {This is covered under Goal 12 below} 
 
 

Page 62



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 41 

Urban Growth Boundary amendment approval criteria from Urbanization 
Element, Section 1.2.3  

 

Criterion a. continued: The standards and criteria in Goal 14, OAR 660, 
Division 24, and other applicable State Goals, 
Statutes, and Rules. 

 
Other applicable State Goals, Statutes, and Rules 

Goal 1—Citizen Involvement 

Findings 

Goal 1 requires the City to have a citizen involvement program that sets the 
procedures by which affected citizens will be involved in the land use decision 
process. Goal 1 requires provision of the opportunity to review proposed 
amendments prior to a public hearing, and recommendations must be retained and 
receive a response from policy-makers. The rationale used to reach land use 
decisions must be available in the written record. The City of Medford has an 
established citizen-involvement program consistent with Goal 1 that includes 
review of proposed Comprehensive Plan amendments by the Planning Commission 
and City Council. Affected agencies and departments are also invited to review and 
comment on such proposals, and hearing notices are published in the local 
newspaper, and posted on the site. This process has been adhered to in this 
proposed amendment. 

The Planning Department conducted an open house (October 28, 2014) to receive 
comments about the scoring methods used for inclusion in the expansion from 
property owners within the urban reserve. For the public hearing process staff sent 
hearing notification to all property owners within the urban reserve. Staff prepared 
press releases and provided information on the City’s website. Finally, this proposal 
will have been considered by the Planning Commission and the City Council during 
televised public hearings. 

Conclusions 

By following a supplemented notification and comment procedure, the City 
provided better-than-adequate opportunities for citizen input. 

Goal 2—Land Use Planning 

Findings 

The City has a land use planning process and policy framework in the form of a 
Comprehensive Plan and development regulations in Chapter 10 of the Municipal 
Code. These are the bases for decisions and actions. The process for amending the 
UGB and all Comprehensive Plan elements was found to be consistent with all State 
requirements at the time of their adoption. 

Page 63



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 42 

Conclusions 

There is an adequate factual basis for the proposed changes and the adopted 
process has been followed for this UGB amendment. 

Goal 3— Not applicable per OAR 660-024-0020(1)(b). 
Goal 4— Not applicable per OAR 660-024-0020(1)(b). 

Goal 5—Natural Resources, Scenic & Historic Areas, and Open Spaces 

Findings 

The City has regulations in place to guide the development and/or protection of 
environmentally sensitive areas such as steep slopes and riparian corridors. These 
rules will be extended to areas added to the UGB once annexed to the City. The City 
must also adopt a revised Local Wetland Inventory (LWI) for the areas added to the 
UGB through this proposal. The LWI will identify wetlands and determine which 
have local significance. A wetland protection ordinance will then be adopted to 
protect locally significant wetlands from development. This work will be completed 
once the final boundary of the UGB is determined. The LWI and wetland protection 
regulations must both be adopted prior to the annexation of any of the areas added 
to the UGB through this amendment. The City’s historic inventory must also be 
amended to include the areas added through this amendment. 
 
Some of the easternmost portions of the urban reserve are within a deer and elk 
habitat area. The Oregon Department of Fish and Wildlife would prefer that this 
area remain in its natural condition and if development does occur within this area 
it must have special standards used to protect this habitat. With the exception of 
Prescott and Chrissy parks, which allow for very limited development, staff’s 
proposal does not extend the UGB into the deer and elk habitat area. 
 
According to OAR 660-024-0020 (Adoption or Amendment of a UGB) “Goal 5 and 
related rules under OAR chapter 660, division 23, apply only in areas added to the 
UGB, except as required under OAR 660-023-0070 and 660-023-0250.” This means 
that Goal 5 compliance is only under review for the areas added to the boundary. 
Goal 5 compliance has already been demonstrated for the existing boundary. ORS 
197.250 [Compliance with Goals Required] requires that “…all comprehensive plans 
and land use regulations adopted by local government to carry out those 
comprehensive plans and all plans, programs, rules or regulations affecting land use 
adopted by a state agency or special district shall be in compliance with the goals 
within one year after the date those goals are approved by the Land Conservation 
and Development Commission.” The City shall demonstrate full compliance with 
Goal 5 within one year of the adoption of the revised UGB through the extension of 
existing development codes to areas added to the UGB, through the adoption of a 
wetland protection ordinance for locally significant wetlands within the newly 
added areas, and through the inclusion of these newly added areas in the City’s 
historic inventory. 

Page 64



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 43 

Conclusions 

The City will demonstrate compliance with all portions of Goal 5 within one year of 
the adoption of the proposed amendment and prior to annexation per OAR 660-
024-0024 and per the revised Urban Growth Management Agreement (see proposed 
text changes on pages 18-21). 

Goal 6—Air, Water, and Land Resources Quality 

Findings 

One of the components of the coarse filter was proximity. Selecting parcels closer to 
the existing UGB not only helps to maximize the efficiency of public infrastructure, it 
helps the environment by reducing motor vehicle trips. A more compact urban area 
with mixed-use neighborhoods helps to promote the development and use of 
transit. Density and distance both play key roles in developing and maintaining 
public transit options. A more compact urban area also provides greater 
opportunities to invest in facilities for pedestrians and bicyclists, while at the same 
time making walking and biking more viable transportation options. The more 
compact urban area helps to reduce the amount of pollution caused by motor 
vehicle traffic by reducing the number of motor vehicle miles traveled; both by 
providing alternative modes of transportation and by reducing the distance traveled 
between home, work, shopping, recreation, and so forth. 

The selecting of parcels close in to the existing UGB also allows for the continued 
rural use of the properties nearer the outer edge of the urban reserve. Unused 
properties in the outer fringe of the urban reserve also benefits the City and the 
environment by acting as a buffer between urban uses and rural uses and/or natural 
areas. In contrast, selecting properties nearer the outside edge of the urban reserve 
would have the effect of disrupting the use of those properties and of the properties 
closer to the existing UGB. By reducing the impact on the urban reserve areas not 
being proposed for inclusion the City is limiting the amount of displacement of rural 
uses in the urban reserve, thus minimizing the impact on lands outside of the urban 
reserve. 

Many of the Goal 5 findings, above, also apply to the findings here under Goal 6. 

Conclusions 

Environmental impacts, including air, water, and land resources quality, were key 
considerations during the adoption of the urban reserve. Now that the urban 
reserve is in place, and the City must select its future UGB from the urban reserve 
areas, the biggest environmental consideration is proximity. All of the urban reserve 
area will be added to the UGB and made available for urbanization eventually, but 
relative environmental impacts must be considered when determining which 
properties to include in the UGB at this time. The urbanization of any of this area 
will have some effect on the environment but the magnitude of the effect has been 
minimized by selecting parcels near the existing UGB. The environmental protection 

Page 65



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 44 

provisions in the Municipal Code will be extended to the areas added to the UGB 
when annexed. Both the LWI and wetland protection ordinance for these newly 
added areas must be adopted prior to the annexation of any of the areas. 

Goal 7—Areas Subject to Natural Hazards 

Findings 

Slopes: The City of Medford has existing hillside regulations, Municipal Code 
Sections 10.929 – 10.933, that regulate the development of property with slopes in 
excess of 15 percent. These procedural requirements are meant to decrease soil 
erosion and protect public safety. This code section will apply to any and all areas 
with slopes exceeding 15% added to the UGB through this amendment once 
annexed to the City. Areas exceeding 25% slope were classified as unbuildable in the 
capacity analysis. Within the area of staff’s proposal lands with slopes of at least 
15%, but less that 25%, account for only 34 total acres. Roughly 1.6% of the total 
area, not including the two large, wildland park areas. 

Fire: The risk of wildfire in and around Medford often rises to extreme levels during 
the summer months. The City of Medford has Fire, Building, and Development codes 
in place to help to mitigate the risk of wildfire in the city. One such provision is 
Municipal Code Section 7.022, which prohibits the use of fireworks within the 
hazardous wildfire areas as defined by Jackson County. There are no areas proposed 
for inclusion into the UGB at this time that are within the proposed hazardous 
wildfire area as determined by Jackson County, with the exception of Prescott Park 
and Chrissy Park. 

Flood: The Municipal Code allows development within flood plains provided that 
buildings meet certain construction standards designed to minimize damage from 
floods. City policies and codes do not have locational standards with respect to flood 
plains, but there is a recommendation in the Environmental Element that states 
“Development and redevelopment should be highly scrutinized when located in 
floodplains.”  

Conclusions 

When considering where to expand its UGB the City is limited to the areas within the 
urban reserve. All State Planning Goals, including Goal 7, were considered as part of 
the selection of the urban reserve. The City has development standards in place to 
mitigate the risk of natural hazards from flood, fire, and steep slopes. These 
standards will be extended to applicable areas when annexed to the City. 

Goal 8—Recreation Needs  

Findings 

The Other Residential Land Needs section of the Housing Element examines existing 
conditions for public and semi-public land to forecast future need for this land type.  

According to the Housing Element:  

Page 66



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 45 

Lands needed for public operations and facilities include lands for city 
facilities, schools, substations, and other public facilities. Land needs were 
estimated using acres per 1,000 persons for all lands of these types. 
Lands needed for parks and open space estimates use a parkland 
standard of 4.3 acres per 1,000 persons based on the level of service 
standard established in the Medford Leisure Services Plan Update (2006). 
This update includes land needed for neighborhood and community 
parks, which usually locate in residential plan designations. It does not 
include land needed for natural open space and greenways, which may 
also be located in residential plan designations. 

 
The resulting land need for community and neighborhood parks is shown in 
Table 6.3. 
 
Table 6.3. City Park Need (adapted from Housing Element Table 40) 

Type of Use Existing 
Acres 

Existing 
Acres / 1000 

Persons 

Assumed Need 
(Ac/1000 
Persons) 

Estimated Need 
per 1000 Persons 

2009-2029 

City Parks 527 6.8 4.3 153 

In addition to the standard urban reserve areas the Regional Plan Element identifies 
two large regional park areas, Prescott Park and Chrissy Park. These areas are City-
owned wildland parks totaling 1,877 acres. Inclusion as urban reserve was intended 
to serve as a mechanism to eventually incorporate this City property into the City 
boundary. The two MD-P areas were not considered areas for future urban growth 
because of their classification as parkland. There is no residential, commercial, or 
industrial development planned for the MD-P acres.  They present a tremendous 
recreational and open space asset to the City and the region, in addition to creating a 
buffer between the city and rural lands to the north and east. However, due to their 
location along the eastern periphery of the city and very steep topography, these 
lands satisfy little of the localized open space needs throughout the city and do not 
meet land needs for traditional urban parkland. 

Another regional recreation use already in existence is Centennial Golf Club. If the 
Manor-owned land surrounding it is brought in, then its inclusion is unavoidable. Its 
function as a regional asset will be unaffected by inclusion. The golf course has been 
counted as unbuildable because the property owners intend to receive an open 
space assessment for the land (ORS 197.186). Although the land has been classified 
as unbuildable in order to remain consistent with ORS 197.186 it might more 
appropriately be viewed as developed. The open space assessment helps to insure 
that the land will remain a golf course and as a golf course the land is already 
developed and meeting that regional need. The land will have no more ability to 
meet an identified land need for the City as a golf course within the boundary than it 
does outside of the boundary. 

Page 67



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 46 

Conclusions 

The Other Residential Land Needs of the Housing Element identified a need for 153 
gross acres of additional parkland for neighborhood and community parks, outside 
of the existing UGB. The Regional Plan Element also includes two large wildland 
park areas that are owned by the City. These areas, Chrissy and Prescott parks, are 
intended to provide both a recreational and open space purpose for the City and for 
the region. While both help to meet the recreational needs for the City these are two 
different land types (neighborhood and community park vs. regional/wildland park 
and open space) that provide two discreet types of uses for the City. The proposed 
UGB expansion will include an adequate supply of land determined to be needed by 
the Leisure Services Plan to accommodate a 20-year population. 

Goal 9—Economic Development 

Findings 

Goal 9 factors were thoroughly addressed in the adoption and acknowledgement of 
the Economic Element of the Comprehensive Plan. Because the Economic Element 
has been deemed consistent with Goal 9, and it is being relied upon to determine the 
City’s employment land need, detailed findings under Goal 9 are not necessary for 
this proposed boundary amendment. However, some discussion regarding Goal 9 
compliance is provided below as a reference to the information from the Economic 
Element that was used in this amendment process. Much of this text is repeated 
from other sections of this document where it is more appropriately considered. 
 
The process of determining Medford’s land need for the next 20 years started with 
the adoption of the Population Element in 2007. This study looked at the forecasted 
population growth in Medford through 2040. The next step was the Buildable Lands 
Inventory (BLI), adopted in 2008, consistent with OAR 660-024-0050 and ORS 
197.186 and 197.296. This study identified the number of acres, in total, and by 
type, available for development within the City’s current UGB. The BLI showed that 
there are approximately 1,078 employment acres available for development within 
Medford’s UGB. The next step was the Economic Element, adopted in 2008, which 
considered the projected population growth, along with economic trends, to 
determine the overall need for employment land over the 20-year planning period. 
The study concluded that an additional 708 gross acres were needed to meet the 
demand for employment land. However, as shown in the Exhibit E, this does not 
properly account for the excess supply of industrial land available within the 
existing boundary. When properly calculated (see Exhibit E) the need for 
employment land increases to 765 gross acres. 
 
Through these studies the City of Medford demonstrated a deficit in the supply of 
employment land within its existing UGB over the next 20 years. ORS 197.296 
subsection (6) recommends addressing the need by expanding the urban growth 
boundary, by increasing the developable capacity of the urban area, or by a 

Page 68



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 47 

combination of the two. Urban Growth Boundary Amendment (UGBA) Phase 1 (ISA 
GLUP Amendment) sought to change the General Land Use Plan map designation of 
land in the existing urban area for the purpose of increasing its development 
capacity in order to accommodate some of the City’s projected need for residential 
and employment land. UGBA Phase 1 resulted in more efficient use within the UGB 
in the following ways: 

 It took surplus industrial land (land in excess of the need for the next 20 years) 
and converted it to commercial land. This resulted in the accommodation of a 
larger portion of the employment need within the existing UGB. 

 The conversion of industrial to commercial also helped to increase the likelihood 
of both commercial and industrial development over the next 20 years by 
placing these uses in more appropriate locations.  There is heavy development 
pressure for commercial uses on the industrial land in the city core near major 
transportation routes. This pressure makes the land less likely to develop with 
industrial use. The swapping of land types places commercial designations on 
tracts of land within the city core while allowing the City to designate more land 
near the outside of the urban area for industrial development. 

 While 58 acres of land was converted from residential to employment GLUP 
designations the total residential land need only increased by 36 acres. This is 
due to the fact that some of this land was not identified as meeting any portion of 
the future residential land need but it is now being counted toward meeting the 
employment land need. This land was identified as developed for residential but 
is expected to redevelop as commercial. 

UGBA Phase 1 resulted in a decrease in the amount of land needed outside the 
current UGB. Before these efficiency measures, a total of 765 acres were needed 
outside of the existing UGB for employment purposes. After UGBA Phase 1, that 
number was reduced to 637 acres. 

Conclusions 

UGBA Phase 1 converted surplus industrial land to commercial land which allowed 
for more of Medford’s need for employment land to be accommodated within its 
existing UGB. The conversion also resulted in the increased likelihood of a larger 
amount of Medford’s employment land need being met within the existing UGB by 
more appropriately locating both commercial and industrial land. UGBA Phase 1 
also reduced the overall land need for the City by converting some residential land 
that was not identified as meeting any portion of the future residential land need to 
employment land that is now counted toward meeting the employment land need. 
While 58 acres of land was converted from residential to employment GLUP map 
designations the total residential land need only increased by 36 acres. These 
adopted efficiency measures helped to address a portion of the City’s employment 
land need, but an additional 637 gross acres of employment land outside of the 

Page 69



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 48 

existing UGB are needed. The proposed UGB expansion will allow the City to meet 
its identified need for employment land. 

Goal 10—Housing   

Findings 

Goal 10 factors were thoroughly addressed in the adoption of the Housing Element 
of the Comprehensive Plan. Because the Housing Element has been deemed 
consistent with Goal 10, and it is being relied upon to determine the City’s 
employment land need, detailed findings under Goal 10 are not necessary for this 
proposed boundary amendment. However, some discussion regarding Goal 10 
compliance is provided below as a reference to the information from the Housing 
Element that was used in this amendment process. Much of this text is repeated 
from other sections of this document where it is more appropriately considered. 
 
Regional Plan Element 4.1.5 requires a minimum density of 6.6 units per gross acre 
for all newly annexed areas for the years 2010 through 2035. The aggregate average 
density of the residential land need, determined by the Housing Element, was 6.9 
units per gross acre (see Table 6.2). Some of this density was then shifted into the 
existing UGB through UGBA Phase 1. This density shift resulted in an increased need 
for low-density residential and a decreased need for medium-density residential 
and high-density residential outside of the existing boundary. While this density 
shift helped to accomplish a number of positive benefits it also makes meeting the 
minimum density requirement of the Regional Plan more difficult. With the revised 
ratios of residential land types in the UGB expansion area, the average densities for 
each of the residential land types alone will not result in a density of 6.6 units per 
gross acre or above. 
 
The Housing Element (2010) provides an accurate representation of the City’s 
housing need over the next 20 years. The Regional Plan, adopted in 2012, imposes a 
density standard that is in excess of the density supported by the Housing Element 
now that the intensification measures from UGBA Phase 1 are completed. The 
Regional Plan also requires a density of 7.6 units per gross acre for all newly added 
areas for the years 2036 to 2050. In order to meet the density obligations of the 
Regional Plan the City will require a master plan to be submitted, showing 
compliance with the Regional Plan obligations for density and land use distribution, 
prior to annexation of any of the land added through this UGB amendment process. 
Acceptable methods for meeting the density standards will include: 

 Committing areas to higher density zones within a General Land Use Plan 
(GLUP) designation. For example, an area within the UR GLUP designation could 
be designated as SFR-10 (Single Family Residential – 10 units per acre) which 
would insure a minimum density of 6 units per acre. By establishing “pre-
zoning” within the established GLUP designations the residential density for the 

Page 70



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 49 

area can be moved higher than the minimum, or even average, density that the 
GLUP would accomplish. 

 Requesting GLUP map changes as part of the master plan approval process. This 
will allow for additional areas for medium-density and high-density 
development within the areas added to the UGB. This technique would allow for 
more flexibility in meeting the density obligations of the Regional Plan without 
imposing a housing mix that is not consistent with the Housing Element. This 
would allow for flexibility in housing types as the market shifts toward higher-
density housing while also setting the stage for the future density standard of 7.6 
units per acre required by the Regional Plan. This approach will also help to 
address the affordable housing need identified in the Housing Element. By 
adding additional high-density housing throughout the UGB (in the existing UGB 
through the SALs and in the newly added areas by allowing for GLUP changes to 
higher-density), the City is enabling more high-density housing, which is needed 
to provide more affordable housing within Medford. 

 
Goal 10 requires that “plans shall encourage the availability of adequate numbers of 
needed housing units at price ranges and rent levels which are commensurate with 
the financial capabilities of Oregon households and allow for flexibility of housing 
location, type, and density.” By allowing some residential areas to request higher 
density GLUP map designations the City is providing for more flexibility of housing 
types in the UGB expansion areas. 

OAR 660-024-0040 (10) allows for a “safe harbor” net-to-gross factor of 25% for 
streets and roads, parks and school facilities. Rather than use the safe harbor 
amount the Housing Element calculates the net-to-gross factor for streets based on 
observation of the existing residential areas in the city. According to the Housing 
Element “… the forecast shows land need in net acres. Net acres is the amount of 
land needed for housing, not including public infrastructure (e.g. roads). Gross acres 
is the estimated amount of land needed for housing inclusive of public 
infrastructure. The net-to-gross factor allows for conversion between net acres to 
gross acres. The net-to-gross factor is highest (23%) for single-family detached 
dwellings, decreasing to 10% for multi-unit projects.” Parks and schools were not 
considered in the net-to-gross factor, but rather, were included in the Public and 
Semi-public Land Needs portion of the Housing Element, which concluded that 153 
acres of park land and 20 acres of school land was needed in the UGB expansion 
area. 
 
The Other Residential Land Needs section of the Housing Element examines existing 
conditions for public and semi-public land to forecast future need for this land type.  

According to the Housing Element:  

Lands needed for public operations and facilities include lands for city 
facilities, schools, substations, and other public facilities. Land needs were 
estimated using acres per 1,000 persons for all lands of these types. 

Page 71



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 50 

Lands needed for parks and open space estimates use a parkland 
standard of 4.3 acres per 1,000 persons based on the level of service 
standard established in the Medford Leisure Services Plan Update (2006). 
This update includes land needed for neighborhood and community 
parks, which usually locate in residential plan designations. It does not 
include land needed for natural open space and greenways, which may 
also be located in residential plan designations. 

See Table 6.1. 

Conclusions 

The Housing Element provides for an adequate land supply at a realistic housing 
mix for the planning horizon. In addition to land for housing, the Housing Element 
also accounts for land needed to provide for streets and other utilities, and for 
public and semi-public uses, which usually occur on residentially zoned properties. 
The residential density requirements of the Regional Plan were added to the 
Comprehensive Plan after the adoption of the Housing Element. By requiring master 
plans for all of the areas being added to the UGB prior to annexation, the City can 
insure that the residential density standards are being met. The required master 
plans must demonstrate compliance with the minimum density standards and with 
the land use distributions required by the Regional Plan. By allowing some 
residential areas to request to change their GLUP map designation to higher 
densities the City is providing more flexibility of housing types in the UGB expansion 
areas.  

Goal 11—Public Facilities and Services 

Findings 

The External Study Areas (ESAs) were made up of the properties that passed 
through the coarse filter.  Additional data were collected for the ESAs regarding the 
serviceability for water, sewer, and transportation (Exhibit H). This was done to 
measure the ability to provide public facilities and services in an orderly and 
economic fashion. The scoring memos provided by the service providers are 
attached as Exhibit I. 
 
The results for the Goal 14 locational factor, “Orderly and economic provision of 
public facilities and services,” apply here as well. 

Conclusions 

By using the scores of the five factors, and considering an area’s ability to meet 
Regional plan obligations rather than comparing properties on a parcel-by-parcel 
basis, the City is able to expand its UGB in a way that will provide for the orderly and 
economic provision of public facilities and services. 

 

Page 72



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 51 

Goal 12—Transportation 

Findings 

Land added to the UGB through this amendment will remain under the jurisdiction 
of Jackson County (Urban Growth Management Agreement will apply) and will 
retain its current County zoning until it is annexed to the City. Prior to the 
annexation of any of the land added to the UGB through this amendment, a revised 
Transportation System Plan (TSP), which includes the areas added through this 
amendment, must be adopted. The revised TSP will address transportation needs 
throughout the entire revised UGB. Areas within the UGB but outside the City Limit 
must go through the annexation and the zone change process before they are 
assigned a standard city zone and made available for urban-level development. The 
City, as a criterion for zone change, requires a demonstration of facilities adequacy 
for transportation prior to approving any zone change that would allow for urban 
development. OAR 660-024-0020(d) states: “The transportation planning rule 
requirements under OAR 660-012-0060 need not be applied to a UGB amendment if 
the land added to the UGB is zoned as urbanizable land, either by retaining the 
zoning that was assigned prior to inclusion in the boundary or by assigning interim 
zoning that does not allow development that would generate more vehicle trips 
than development allowed by the zoning assigned prior to inclusion in the 
boundary.” Since all land added through this amendment will retain the zoning that 
was assigned prior to inclusion in the boundary, the transportation planning rule 
does not apply to this amendment. Transportation system needs and transportation 
system adequacy will be addressed both prior to annexation and through the zone 
change process. 
 
Work is well underway to complete a revised TSP for the City which will include a 
comprehensive overhaul of the existing TSP. Work on the TSP cannot be completed 
until the location of the revised boundary is known. 

Conclusions 

The City will require that a revised Transportation System Plan (TSP), which 
includes the areas added to the UGB through this amendment, be adopted prior to 
the annexation of any of the newly added land. The revised TSP will address 
transportation needs throughout the entire revised UGB.  

Goal 13—Energy Conservation 

Findings—Energy 

The Regional Plan requires the development of mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly 
areas. This type of development encourages the use of travel modes other than 
driving, leading to a reduction in vehicle miles travelled. One of the components of 
the coarse filter was proximity. Selecting parcels closer to the existing UGB not only 
helps to maximize the efficiency of public infrastructure, it has the effect of reducing 
energy use by reducing motor vehicle trips. A more compact urban area, with 

Page 73



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 52 

mixed-use neighborhoods, helps to promote the development and use of transit. 
Density and distance both play key roles in developing and maintaining public 
transit options. A more compact urban area also provides greater opportunities to 
invest in facilities for pedestrians and bicyclists, while at the same time making 
walking and biking more viable transportation options. The more compact urban 
area helps to reduce energy consumption by reducing the number of motor vehicle 
miles traveled; both by providing alternative modes of transportation and by 
reducing the distance traveled between home, work, shopping, recreation, and so 
forth. While the development of recreational trails can play a minor role in reducing 
vehicle miles traveled, the largest factors in this regard are land use, connectivity, 
and mode completeness. 

Conclusions—Energy 

When considering where to expand the UGB, mixed-use development and proximity 
have the greatest impact on the use and/or conservation of energy. The fact that the 
needed houses and jobs would be efficiently contained in the current urban area 
and in areas close to the existing UGB would have generally positive energy 
consequences due to the increased possibility of non-motorized travel modes 
between trip generators and decreasing overall vehicle miles travelled. 

Goal 14—Urbanization 

Findings 

Refer to findings under Land Need and Boundary Location under Goal 14, starting 
on page 22 above. 

Conclusions 

The proposed UGB expansion area meets the requirements of all Goal 14 factors. 

Goals 15–19 do not apply to Medford.  
 
Urban Growth Boundary amendment approval criteria from Urbanization 
Element Section1.2.3  

 

Criterion a. continued: The standards and criteria in Goal 14, OAR 660, 
Division 24, and other applicable State Goals, 
Statutes, and Rules. 

Other applicable State Goals, Statutes, and Rules 
 
There are numerous State Goals, Statues, and Rules that apply to the adoption of 
individual Comprehensive Plan Elements. Each Comprehensive Plan Element being 
relied upon to support this UGB amendment was found to be consistent with all 
applicable State Goals, Statues, and Rules at the time of their adoption. Those 

Page 74



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 53 

findings are included in the record and findings for this proposed UGB amendment, 
by reference. 
 
The State Goals, as they apply to the proposed amendment, have been discussed in 
detail above. The State Statues and Rules that apply directly to the proposed UGB 
amendment deal either with determining land need or determining boundary 
location, both of which have been discussed in detail above (see “Land Need” and 
“Boundary Location” sections beginning on page 29). 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 75



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 54 

*  *  *  *  * 

Urban Growth Boundary amendment approval criteria from Urbanization 
Element Section1.2.3  
 
Criterion b.  Compliance with Medford Comprehensive Plan policies and 

development code procedures. 
 
City of Medford Comprehensive Plan Conclusions, Goals, Policies, and 
Implementation Strategies: 

Findings 

The following Comprehensive Plan Goals, Policies, and Implementation Strategies 
support the inclusion of Prescott Park and Chrissy Park in the City’s UGB: 
 

Physical Characteristics 
Policy 2-A: The City of Medford shall acknowledge Prescott Park (Roxy Ann Peak) as the 
City’s premier open space and viewshed, and recognize its value as Medford’s most 
significant scenic view, currently and historically.  

Implementation 2-A(1): Investigate inclusion of Prescott Park in Medford’s Urban 
Growth Boundary and City limits in order to enhance public safety and the feeling 
of ownership by city residents, protect its natural resources, preserve and enhance 
convenient public access, protect the public from fire hazards, and help in 
establishing a network of open space corridors with recreational trails.  

Implementation 2-A(2): Identify lands surrounding Prescott Park that are critical 
to ensuring long term protection and meeting open space/viewshed goals and 
policies, for acquisition or other types of public management. Seek funding sources.  

Implementation 2-A(3): Consider methods to address the interface between 
Prescott Park and adjacent development to assure compatibility, such as a 
buffering program, enhanced review of City and County development applications 
within a specified area surrounding Prescott Park, and joint policies or an “Area of 
Mutual Planning Concern” with Jackson County.  

Policy 2-B: The City of Medford shall strive to preserve and protect the visual amenities 
offered by the foothills.  

Parks, Recreation, and Leisure Services 
Policy 2-C: The City of Medford shall give special consideration to Prescott Park in order to 
protect this dynamic natural and recreational resource and most significant scenic view 
for the enjoyment of present and future generations. 

Implementation 2-C (3): Pursue inclusion of Prescott Park in the Medford Urban 
Growth Boundary for eventual inclusion within the City of Medford. 

Page 76



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 55 

Implementation 2-C (4): Increase access and public enjoyment of Prescott Park by 
developing appropriate facilities to enhance appreciation of natural resources, the 
outdoors, and Medford’s unique environment. Until included within the Medford 
Urban Growth Boundary, improvements  within Prescott Park must comply with 
Jackson County land use regulations, as well as state rules and statutes, which may 
limit the extent of improvements on land outside of UGBs. 

Solid Waste Management 
Policy 1-E: The City of Medford shall assure that appropriate measures are taken to secure 
compatibility between the development and use of the Dry Creek Landfill and Prescott 
Park.  

The following Comprehensive Plan Goals, Policies, and Implementation Strategies 
support a compact urban area with mixed-use neighborhoods: 

Natural Resources—Air Quality 
Implementation 3-A(3): Implement strategies from sources such as the Medford 
Transportation System Plan, the State Implementation Plans (SIPs) and the 
Oregon Transportation Planning Rule (TPR) that reduce emissions or improve air 
quality, such as increasing the use of alternative modes of transportation and use 
of alternative motor vehicle fuels, such as compressed natural gas and electricity, 
and propose amendments to the Medford Land Development Code for 
consideration by the City Council where necessary to assure compliance with such 
plans or rules.  

Policy 3-B: The City of Medford shall continue to require a well-connected circulation 
system and promote other techniques that foster alternative modes of transportation, such 
as pedestrian oriented mixed-use development and a linked bicycle transportation system.  

Health Services 
Policy 1-A: The City of Medford shall strive to provide transportation, utilities, and other 
public facilities and services needed to support health care facilities within the Urban 
Growth Boundary, consistent with the health care facilities’ growth requirements.  

Natural resources 
Policy 9-A: The City of Medford shall target public investments to reinforce a compact 
urban form.  

Policy 9-B: The City of Medford shall strive to protect significant resource lands, including 
agricultural land, from urban expansion.  

Natural Resources—Energy 
Policy 10-A: The City of Medford shall plan and approve growth and development with 
consideration to energy efficient patterns of development, utilizing existing capital 
infrastructure whenever possible, and incorporating compact and urban centered growth 
concepts.  

Page 77



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 56 

Implementation 10-A(1): Ensure that the extension of urban services is consistent 
with policies contained in the “Public Facilities Element” of the Medford 
Comprehensive Plan regarding energy efficiency.  

The following Comprehensive Plan Goals, Policies, and Implementation Strategies 
support the use of adopted Population, Economic, Housing, and Buildable Lands 
Elements to determine land need: 

Population Element 
Policy 1: The City of Medford shall cooperate with other government agencies and the 
private sector to provide land and urban services sufficient to accommodate projected 
population growth in the UGB. 

Policy 2: The City of Medford shall use the population forecast adopted in the Population 
Element of the Medford Comprehensive Plan as the basis for developing land use planning 
policy (Official population projection: 112,624 for the year 2027, and 133,397 for the year 
2040.) 

Economic Element 
Employment Land Demand and Supply 
1. This analysis indicates that additional land in the UGB is required to satisfy the 

City’s land needs over the planning horizon. 

2. The City of Medford has selected the High Employment Growth Scenario under 
which the City is projected to need 1,644 net buildable acres over the 20-year 
planning horizon and 2,055 gross buildable acres, consisting of needed acres in the 
following categories: 

a. 504 net buildable acres of Office Commercial 

b. 589 net buildable acres of Industrial 

c. 609 net buildable acres of Retail Commercial 

d. 38 net buildable acres of Overnight Lodging 

e. 315 net buildable acres of Specialized Uses 

The City has a supply of 900 acres of vacant employment land and an additional 178 net 
acres is expected to be available in the existing UGB to meet new demand through 
redevelopment. Based upon the adopted High Growth Scenario, the City of Medford has a 
deficit of 566 net buildable acres which equals 708 gross acres of employment land.  
 
Economic Opportunities 
Policy 1-5: The City of Medford shall assure that adequate commercial and industrial lands 
are available to accommodate the types and amount of economic development needed to 
support the anticipated growth in employment in the City of Medford and the region.  

Page 78



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 57 

Implementation 1-5(b): Reduce projected deficits in employment lands by changing 
GLUP Map designations within the existing Urban Growth Boundary.  

Implementation 1-5(c): Assist in the identification of sites for businesses that have 
unique site requirements.  

Implementation 1-5(d): Ensure that demand projections for medium and large 
Commercial, Industrial and Office sites are captured in aggregate land demand 
projections during GLUP map amendments and/or UGB expansions. 

Policy 1-7: The City of Medford will rely upon its High Employment Growth Scenario in the 
City’s Economic Element twenty-year Employment Projections, Land Demand Projections, 
and Site Demand Projections when planning its employment land base. 

Housing Element 
6. Medford will need 1,890 net residential acres, or 2,383 gross residential acres, to 

accommodate new housing between 2009 and 2029. Not all of this can be 
accommodated within the current urban growth boundary. Therefore, Medford has a 
deficit of 996 gross acres in the following designations:  

Implementation 1-A: When considering changes to the Medford Comprehensive 
Plan or Land Development Code, base such changes on the Housing Element 
adopted on December 2, 2010, particularly: 

Housing Need Projection in Table 31 

Forecast of Needed Housing Units in Table 37 

Buildable Land Needed for New Dwelling Units in Table 39 

Residential Land Deficit by Plan Designation in Table 41  

Implementation 5-A: Maintain an inventory of areas suitable for preservation as 
open space. 

Compliance with applicable Goals and Policies of the Regional Plan Element are 
discussed below: 

Regional Plan Element – Implementation Measure 
7. Conceptual Transportation Plans. Conceptual Transportation Plans shall be prepared 
early enough in the planning and development cycle that the identified regionally 
significant transportation corridors within each of the URs can be protected as cost-
effectively as possible by available strategies and funding. A Conceptual Transportation 
Plan for an urban reserve or appropriate portion of an urban reserve shall be prepared by 
the City in collaboration with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization, 
applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other affected agencies, and shall be 
adopted by Jackson County and the respective city prior to or in conjunction with a UGB 
amendment within that UR. 

Page 79



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 58 

a. Transportation Infrastructure. The Conceptual Transportation Plan shall 
identify a general network of regionally significant arterials under local 
jurisdiction, transit corridors, bike and pedestrian paths, and associated projects 
to provide mobility throughout the Region (including intracity and intercity, if 
applicable). 

The City has prepared a conceptual transportation plan for all of the urban reserve 
areas around the city. The plan identifies regionally significant transportation 
corridors and was developed in collaboration with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan 
Planning Organization, applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other 
affected agencies. The Medford Street Functional Classification Plan Map will be 
amended to include the higher-order streets within the UGB expansion area (see 
Map 5.3).  

Regional Plan Element – Implementation Measure 
8. Conceptual Land Use Plans. A proposal for a UGB Amendment into a designated UR 
shall include a Conceptual Land Use Plan prepared by the City in collaboration with the 
Rogue Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization, applicable irrigation districts, Jackson 
County, and other affected agencies for the area proposed to be added to the UGB as 
follows: 

a. Target Residential Density. The Conceptual Land Use Plan shall provide 
sufficient information to demonstrate how the residential densities of Section 4.1.5 
above will be met at full build-out of the area added through the UGB amendment. 

b. Land Use Distribution. The Conceptual Land Use Plan shall indicate how the 
proposal is consistent with the general distribution of land uses in the Regional 
Plan, especially where a specific set of land uses were part of the rationale for 
designating land which was determined by the Resource Lands Review Committee 
to be commercial agricultural land as part of an urban reserve, which applies to 
the following URs: CP-1B, CP-1C, CP-4D, CP-6A, CP-2B, MD-4, MD-6, MD-7mid, MD-
7n, PH-2, TA-2, TA-4. 

c. Transportation Infrastructure. The Conceptual Land Use Plan shall include the 
transportation infrastructure required in Section 4.1.7 above. 

d. Mixed Use/Pedestrian Friendly Areas. The Conceptual Land Use Plan shall 
provide sufficient information to demonstrate how the commitments of Section 
4.1.6 above will be met at full build-out of the area added through the UGB 
amendment. 

The City has prepared conceptual land use plans for all areas within the urban 
reserve in collaboration with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan Planning Organization, 
applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other affected agencies. The 
plans show land use distributions, transportation infrastructure, and mixed 
use/pedestrian friendly areas. In addition to these conceptual plans, the City will 
require all areas to be master planned prior to annexation. The required master 
plan shall show compliance with the target residential density, more detailed land 

Page 80



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 59 

use distributions, more detailed information regarding transportation 
infrastructure, and fully demonstrate compliance with the requirement for mixed- 
use/pedestrian-friendly areas. 

Regional Plan Element – Implementation Measure 
9. Conditions. The following conditions apply to specific Urban Reserve areas: 

a. MD-6. Prior to incorporation into the Urban Growth Boundary, a property line 
adjustment or land division shall be completed for Tax Lots 38-1W-05-2600 and 
38-1W-06-100 so that the tax lot lines coincide with the proposed Urban Growth 
Boundary. 

Tax Lots 38-1W-05-2600 and 38-1W-06-100 are not included in the UGB expansion 
area. 

Regional Plan Element – Implementation Measure 
13. Urban Growth Boundary Amendment. Pursuant to ORS 197.298 and Oregon 
Administrative Rule 660-021-0060, URs designated in the Regional Plan are the first 
priority lands used for a UGB amendment by participating cities. 

a. Land outside of a city’s UR shall not be added to a UGB unless the general use 
intended for that land cannot be accommodated on any of the city’s UR land or 
UGB land. 

Only land within the City’s urban reserve is being considered for inclusion in the 
UGB. 

Regional Plan Element – Implementation Measure 
17. Parkland. For the purposes of UGB amendments, the amount and type of park land 
included shall be consistent with the requirements of OAR 660-024-0040 or the park land 
need shown in the acknowledged plans. 

OAR 660-024-0040 (10) allows for a safe harbor net-to-gross factor of 25% for 
streets and roads, parks and school facilities. Rather than use the safe harbor 
amount the Housing Element calculates the net-to-gross factor for streets based on 
observation of the existing residential areas in the city. According to the Housing 
Element “… the forecast shows land need in net acres.  Net acres is the amount of 
land needed for housing, not including public infrastructure (e.g. roads). Gross acres 
is the estimated amount of land needed for housing inclusive of public 
infrastructure.  The net to gross factor allows for conversion between net acres to 
gross acres.  The net to gross factor is highest (23%) for single-family detached 
dwellings, decreasing to 10% for multi-unit projects.”  Parks and schools were not 
considered in the net-to-gross factor, but rather, were included in the Other 
Residential Land Needs portion of the Housing Element, which concluded that 153 
acres of park land and 20 acres of school land were needed in the UGB expansion 
area. 
 

Page 81



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 60 

The Other Residential Land Needs section of the Housing Element examines existing 
conditions for public and semi-public land to forecast future need for this land type.  

According to the Housing Element:  

Lands needed for public operations and facilities include lands for city 
facilities, schools, substations, and other public facilities. Land needs were 
estimated using acres per 1,000 persons for all lands of these types. 
Lands needed for parks and open space estimates use a parkland 
standard of 4.3 acres per 1,000 persons based on the level of service 
standard established in the Medford Leisure Services Plan Update (2006). 
This update includes land needed for neighborhood and community 
parks, which usually locate in residential plan designations. It does not 
include land needed for natural open space and greenways, which may 
also be located in residential plan designations. 

See Table 6.1. 
 
In addition to the standard urban reserve areas the Regional Plan Element identifies 
two large regional park areas, MD-P Prescott and MD-P Chrissy, which contain 
Prescott Park and Chrissy Park, respectively. These areas are City-owned wildland 
parks totaling 1,877 acres. Inclusion as urban reserve was intended to serve as a 
mechanism to eventually incorporate this City property into the City boundary. The 
two MD-P areas were not considered areas for future urban growth because of their 
classification as parkland. There is no residential, commercial, or industrial 
development planned for the MD-P acres.  They present a tremendous recreational 
and open space asset to the City and the region, in addition to creating a buffer 
between the city and rural lands to the north and east. However, due to their 
location along the eastern periphery of the city and very steep topography, these 
lands satisfy little of the localized open space needs throughout the city and do not 
meet land needs for traditional urban parkland. 
 

Regional Plan Element – Implementation Measure 
18. Slopes. Future urban growth boundary amendments will be required to utilize the 
definition of buildable land as those lands with a slope of less than 25 percent, or as 
consistent with OAR 660-008-0005(2) and other local and state requirements. 

The capacity analysis that was completed for the ESAs only classified sloped land as 
unbuildable for those areas where the slopes exceeded 25 percent. 

Regional Plan Element – Implementation Measure 
20. Future Coordination with the RVCOG. The participating jurisdictions shall collaborate 
with the Rogue Valley Council of Governments on future regional planning that assists the 
participating jurisdictions in complying with the Regional Plan performance indicators. 
This includes cooperation in a region-wide conceptual planning process if funding is 
secured. 

Page 82



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 61 

The City of Medford has continued to collaborate with the Rogue Valley Council of 
Governments and other participating jurisdictions since the adoption of the 
Regional Plan. The City will coordinate the adoption of master plans for each of the 
areas added to the UGB through this amendment. The City will also continue to 
collaborate with the Rogue Valley Council of Governments on future regional 
planning that assists the participating jurisdictions in complying with the Regional 
Plan performance indicators. 

Conclusions for Criterion b. 

There are several Comprehensive Plan Conclusions, Goals, and Policies that support 
the inclusion of Prescott and Chrissy Park into the UGB. The proposed boundary 
location will bring both of this City owned areas into the UGB. There are also several 
Comprehensive Plan Conclusions, Goals, and Policies that support a compact urban 
area with mixed-use neighborhoods. The efficiency measure of UGBA Phase 1 
helped in both of these areas. The proposed boundary location was selected in large 
part because of its proximity to the existing UGB and to existing development. Areas 
that presented better opportunities for mixed-use development were given priority 
over lands that would provide for a lesser mix of uses. 

The Comprehensive Plan Conclusions, Goals, and Policies support the use of adopted 
Population, Economic, Housing, and Buildable Lands Elements in determining land 
need. These adopted elements were used without modification to determine the 
land need for the City. In some cases the numbers may appear slightly different due 
to differences in rounding. In other cases the information from the elements had to 
be interpreted and applied in order to determine the number of acres needed in 
each of the GLUP categories. At other times conflicts between these adopted 
elements and the Regional Plan had to be reasoned through and the resulting 
boundary amendment is the result of balancing the existing elements to the greatest 
amount possible. 

The City will require areas added through this amendment to be master planned 
prior to annexation. The required master plan must show compliance with the 
target residential density, more detailed land use distributions, more detailed 
information regarding transportation infrastructure, and fully demonstrate 
compliance with the requirement for mixed use/pedestrian friendly areas. The 
remaining Regional Plan requirements have been addressed through the proposed 
amendment at this time. 

The proposed UGB amendment and boundary location are consistent with the 
policies of the Comprehensive Plan. 

 

 

Page 83



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 62 

*  *  *  *  * 

Urban Growth Boundary amendment approval criteria from Urbanization 
Element, Section 1.2.3  

 

Criterion c.  Compliance with Jackson County’s development ordinance 
standards for urban growth boundary amendment.  Many of the 
findings made to satisfy subparagraph (a), preceding, will also 
satisfy this criterion. 

 
Per the Jackson County Land Development Ordinance (LDO) a Type 4 Permit 
application will be submitted to Jackson County for the proposed urban growth 
boundary amendment. The proposed amendment will follow the application 
process of LDO Section 3.7.3(E) for UGB Amendment, which requires a Legislative 
Hearing and Planning Commission Recommendation. 
 
Jackson County LDO Section 3.7.3(E) — Standards for Amending an Adopted Urban 
Growth Boundary, Urban Reserve Area, Urban Fringe, or Buffer Area 

In addition to the requirements contained in joint Urban Growth Boundary 
agreements and Urban Reserve agreements, all proposed boundary and area 
amendments must comply with applicable State Law, Statewide Planning Goals, the 
County Comprehensive Plan and any Regional Problem Solving documents adopted by 
the County. 

Findings: Compliance with applicable State Law, Statewide Planning Goals, and 
Regional Problem Solving Documents has been discussed in the findings for criteria 
a. and b. above. 
 
Compliance with the requirements contained in the joint Urban Growth Boundary 
agreements and Urban Reserve agreements and with the County Comprehensive 
Plan will be discussed below. Not all sections of the agreements apply to the 
proposed boundary amendment. Only applicable portions will be repeated and 
discussed. 
 
Urban Growth Boundary agreements:  
Urbanization Element of the City of Medford Comprehensive Plan 
Appendix 1. Urban Growth Management Agreement 
 
2.a. Urban development shall be encouraged to occur on undeveloped and 
underdeveloped land within city limits prior to the annexation and conversion of other 
land within the UGB. 

Finding: Urban Growth Boundary Amendment (UGBA) Phase 1, the Selected 
Amendment Locations (SALs), helped to encourage the development of 
underdeveloped and undeveloped land within the city limits in the following ways: 

Page 84



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 63 

 It took surplus industrial land (land in excess of the need for the next 20 years) 
and converted it to commercial land. This resulted in the accommodation of a 
larger portion of the employment need within the existing UGB;  

 The conversion of industrial to commercial also helped to increase the likelihood 
of both commercial and industrial development over the next 20 years by 
placing these uses in more appropriate locations. There is strong development 
pressure for commercial uses on the industrial land nearer the center of the city, 
near major transportation routes. This pressure makes the land less likely to 
develop with industrial use. The swapping of land types places commercial 
designations on tracts of land nearer the center of the city while allowing the 
City to designate more land near the outside of the urban area, and still near 
major transportation routes, for industrial development; 

 The City was able to shift some of the residential density called for in the 
Housing Element, and required by the Regional Plan, to the inside of the urban 
area. By shifting density inward the City is providing for a more efficient use of 
land and of public infrastructure;  

 While UGBA Phase 1 resulted in a 58-acre conversion of land from residential to 
employment GLUP designations, the total residential land need only increased 
by 36 acres; 

 The conversion of some residential land to employment land decreased the 
overall land need due to the fact that some of this land was not identified as 
meeting any portion of the future residential land need because it was classified 
as developed for residential. Because this land is expected to redevelop with 
commercial uses it is now being counted toward meeting a portion of the 
employment land need; and   

 The shifting of density inward allows for a more efficient use of land within the 
city now, rather than relying on redevelopment to higher densities in the future. 
This also helps to provide opportunities for increased densities in the UGB 
expansion area because a larger percentage of the forecasted population over 
the next 20 years can be accommodated within the existing boundary. This could 
result in a slower expansion into the newly added areas, which would allow for 
policy changes in the future should the market shift toward higher density 
development. The density shift also helps to meet the obligations of the Regional 
Transportation Plan. 

3.e.  If the city and county have mutually approved, and the city has adopted, 
conversion plan regulations for the orderly conversion of property from county to city 
jurisdiction, the county will require that applications for subdivisions, partitions, or 
other land divisions within the UGB be consistent with the city’s Comprehensive Plan. 
Once developed, the mutually agreed upon conversion plan shall be the paramount 
document, until incorporation occurs. 

Page 85



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 64 

6.  The city, county and affected agencies shall coordinate the expansion and 
development of all urban facilities and services within the urbanizable area. 

Finding: The City has prepared conceptual land use and transportation plans for all 
areas within the urban reserve in collaboration with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan 
Planning Organization, applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other 
affected agencies. The plans show land use distributions, transportation 
infrastructure, and mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly areas. The plans will be adopted 
by the City of Medford and by Jackson County in conjunction with this UGB 
amendment. In addition to these conceptual plans, the City will require all areas to 
be master planned prior to annexation. The required master plan shall show 
compliance with the target residential density, more detailed land use distributions, 
more detailed information regarding transportation infrastructure, and fully 
demonstrate compliance with the requirement for mixed-use/pedestrian-friendly 
areas. 

The required master plans will be adopted into the Neighborhood Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan and will provide a greater level of specificity than the GLUP 
map regarding future land use in the areas added to the UGB. 

9.  Long-range transportation and air quality planning for the urbanizable area shall 
be a joint city/county process coordinated with all affected agencies. 

Finding: The City is in the process of updating its Transportation System Plan (TSP). 
The revised TSP will include all portions of the UGB, including areas added through 
this amendment. The TSP will be produced in coordination with Jackson County and 
must be adopted prior to the annexation of any of the areas added to the UGB 
through this amendment. The Medford Street Functional Classification Plan Map will 
be amended to include the higher-order streets within the UGB expansion area (see 
Map 5.3). 

11.  Proposed land use changes immediately inside the UGB shall be considered in light 
of their impact on, and compatibility with, existing agricultural and other rural uses 
outside the UGB. To the extent that it is consistent with state land use law, proposed 
land use changes outside the UGB shall be considered in light of their impact on, and 
compatibility with, existing urban uses within the UGB. 

12. The city and county acknowledge the importance of permanently protecting 
agricultural land outside the UGB zoned EFU, and acknowledge that both jurisdictions 
maintain, and will continue to maintain, policies regarding the buffering of said lands. 
Urban development will be allowed to occur on land adjacent to land zoned EFU when 
the controlling jurisdiction determines that such development will be compatible with 
the adjacent farm use. Buffering shall occur on the urbanizable land adjacent to the 
UGB. The amount and type of buffering required will be considered in light of the 
urban growth and development policies of the city, and circumstances particular to 

Page 86



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 65 

the agricultural land. The controlling jurisdiction will request and give standing to the 
non-controlling jurisdiction for recommendations concerning buffering of urban 
development proposals adjacent to lands zoned EFU. 

Finding: The selecting of parcels close in to the existing UGB allows for the 
continued rural use of the properties nearer the edge of the urban reserve. The 
lower-intensity use of properties in the outer fringe of the urban reserve can act as a 
buffer between urban uses and farm and forest uses outside of the UGB. 

Regional Plan element 4.1.10 requires the use of agricultural buffers to separate 
urban uses from agricultural uses. The City adopted City Code Section 10.802, 
Urban–Agricultural Conflict in Urban Reserve on August 16, 2012. This section 
applies to land in the urban growth boundary that is added from the urban reserve 
shown in the Regional Plan. 

13.  All UGB amendments shall include adjacent street and other transportation rights-
of-way. 

Finding: The City recognizes and acknowledges that this proposed UGB amendment 
includes adjacent street and other transportation rights-of-way. The City has 
already committed to this in the URMA, and expects the County to require similar 
language in the new UGMA. 

 
Urban Reserve agreements: 
Regional Plan Element of the City of Medford Comprehensive Plan 
Appendix C-Urban Reserve Management Agreement 
 
5.E(i) County Roads. …When City’s UGB is expanded into the UR (Urban Reserve), 
County will require (e.g., through a condition of approval of UGB amendment) that 
City assume jurisdiction over the county roads within the proposed UGB at the time of 
annexation into the City regardless of the design standard used to construct the 
road(s) and regardless of when and how the road(s) became county roads… 
…When a proposed UGB amendment will result in a significant impact to a county 
road(s) already within the City’s limits, or existing UGB, such that the proposed 
amendment depends on said county road(s) for proper traffic circulation, then a nexus 
is found to exist between the proposed UGB expansion and said county road(s).  Where 
such a nexus exists, the county may require, as a condition of approval, the transfer of 
all, or portions of, said county road(s) within the existing UGB or City’s limits at the 
time of annexation, regardless of the design standards to which the road is 
constructed.  

Finding: The City is in the process of updating its Transportation System Plan (TSP). 
The revised TSP will include all portions of the UGB, including areas added through 
this amendment. The TSP will be produced in coordination with Jackson County and 

Page 87



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 66 

must be adopted prior to the annexation of any of the areas added to the UGB 
through this amendment. 

The City has prepared conceptual land use and transportation plans, for all areas 
within the urban reserve, in collaboration with the Rogue Valley Metropolitan 
planning Organization, applicable irrigation districts, Jackson County, and other 
affected agencies. The plans show land use distributions, transportation 
infrastructure, and mixed use/pedestrian friendly areas. The plans will be adopted 
by the City of Medford and by Jackson County in conjunction with this UGB 
amendment. In addition to these conceptual plans, the City will require all areas to 
be master planned prior to annexation. The required master plan shall show 
compliance with the target residential density, more detailed land use distributions, 
more detailed information regarding transportation infrastructure, and fully 
demonstrate compliance with the requirement for mixed use/pedestrian friendly 
areas. 

The required master plans will be adopted into the Neighborhood Element of the 
Comprehensive Plan and will provide a greater level of specificity than the GLUP 
map regarding future land use in the areas added to the UGB. 

The revised TSP will help to identify areas where the proposed UGB amendment 
will result in a significant impact to a county road(s) already within the City’s limits, 
or existing UGB. The required master plan will further identify proposed uses of 
these areas added to the UGB which will allow for better traffic modeling prior to 
annexation and zoning. The transfer of all, or portions, of such county road(s) could 
be adopted as a condition of annexation for these properties. 
 
5.H Service Expansion Plans. As the future provider of water, sewer, parks and 
recreation, road maintenance and improvement, and stormwater management 
services in the UR, City shall prepare and update service expansion plans and these 
plans shall be consistent with the UGBMA between City and County. These plans 
provide a basis for the extension of services within the UGB and shall be referred to 
County for comment. 

Finding: ORS 197.250 [Compliance with Goals Required] requires that “…all 
comprehensive plans and land use regulations adopted by local government to carry 
out those comprehensive plans and all plans, programs, rules or regulations 
affecting land use adopted by a state agency or special district shall be in compliance 
with the goals within one year after the date those goals are approved by the Land 
Conservation and Development Commission.” The City shall demonstrate full 
compliance with all Goals, including Goal 8: Recreation Needs; Goal 11: Public 
Facilities and Services; and Goal 12: Transportation, within one year of the adoption 
of the revised UGB. All City plans for parks, transportation, stormwater, and other 
services will be amended to include the areas added to the UGB. All such plans will 
be coordinated with the County. 

Page 88



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 67 

County Comprehensive Plan:  

Finding: Areas added to the UGB through this amendment will remain under the 
jurisdiction of the County until they are annexed to the City. The UGMA will apply to 
these areas along with the County’s Comprehensive Plan and applicable portions of 
the County’s LDO. Once an area is annexed to the City the City’s Comprehensive Plan 
and Land Development Code will apply. There are several portions of the County’s 
LDO, which deal with special areas of consideration (listed below), that will apply to 
some of the areas added to the UGB through this amendment. These protections are 
consistent with the Statewide Goals, and the City has similar protections in place. 

Section 7.1.1(B) ASC 82-2 Bear Creek Greenway 
Section 7.1.1(C) ASC 90-1 Deer and Elk Habitat 
Section 7.1.1(F) ASC 90-4 Historic Resources 
Section 7.1.1(G) ASC 90-6 Archaeological Sites 
Section 7.1.1(K) ASC 90-10 Ecologically or Scientifically Significant Natural Areas 
Section 7.4.3 Urban Fringe 
Section 7.4.3(F) Setbacks from Resource Lands and Reduction Requests 
Section 8.6 Stream Corridors 

 
Section 10.2.3: Jurisdictional Overlap, and Section 10.3.2: Approval Criteria for 
Tentative Plans within Urban Growth Boundaries and Urban Unincorporated 
Community Boundaries, are both covered by the UGMA. 

Conclusions for Criterion c. 

Jackson County’s development ordinance requires a finding that UGB amendments 
are consistent with the requirements contained in joint Urban Growth Boundary 
agreements and Urban Reserve agreements, and that all proposed boundary and 
area amendments comply with applicable State Law, Statewide Planning Goals, the 
County Comprehensive Plan and any Regional Problem Solving documents adopted 
by the County. Compliance with applicable State Law, Statewide Planning Goals, and 
Regional Problem Solving Documents has been discussed in the findings for criteria 
a. and b. above. 
 
The proposed UGB amendment has also been shown to be consistent with the Urban 
Growth Management Agreement, the Urban Reserve Management Agreement, and 
the County’s Comprehensive Plan. By showing compliance with the applicable State 
Law, Statewide Planning Goals, Regional Plan documents, the Urban Growth 
Management Agreement, the Urban Reserve Management Agreement, and the 
County’s Comprehensive Plan, the City has demonstrated compliance with Jackson 
County’s development ordinance standards for urban growth boundary 
amendment. 

 

 

Page 89



Exhibit B  

Staff Report  

 

 
Page 68 

*  *  *  *  * 

Urban Growth Boundary amendment approval criteria from Urbanization 
Element Section1.2.3  

 
Criterion d.  Consistency with pertinent terms and requirements of the 

current Urban Growth Management Agreement between the City 
and Jackson County. 

Findings 

Consistency with pertinent terms and requirements of the current Urban Growth 
Management Agreement between the City and Jackson County is discussed under 
Urban Growth Boundary agreements and Urban Reserve agreements in the findings 
for criterion c. above. 

Conclusions 

See conclusions for criterion c. above.  
 

 

Page 90



Exhibit C 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 69 

EXHIBIT C. LAND SUPPLY 
 
The purpose of the Buildable Lands Inventory (BLI), completed by the City in 2008, was 
to inventory the number and location of acres available for development within the 
existing UGB by individual land type. 
 
Residential  
 
The Buildable Lands Inventory concluded that residential land was available within the 
existing UGB in the following amounts: Urban [Low-Density] Residential (UR) = 2,385 
acres, Urban Medium-Density Residential (UM) = 49 acres, and Urban High-Density 
Residential (UH) = 158 acres. 

Table 7.1. Residential Land Supply (adapted from Housing Element Table 30)  

Plan Designation          Supply (acres) Plan Description 

UR 2,385 Low-density Residential, 4–10 units/acre 

Vacant 1,703 

Partially Vacant 419 

Redevelopable 263 

UM 49 Medium-density Residential, 10–15 units/acre 
Vacant 35 

Partially Vacant 6 

Redevelopable 8  

UH   158 High-density Residential, 15–30 units/acre 
Vacant 132 

Partially Vacant 14 

Redevelopable 13 

Total Residential 2,592 

The supply of residential land was changed through UGBA Phase 1. In many cases low-
density residential land was converted to either medium-density or high-density. In 
other instances residential land was converted to employment land. The end result was 
a more efficient use of land within the existing UGB which resulted in a need of 92 fewer 
acres outside of the existing UGB. The resulting residential land supply after UGBA 
Phase 1 is shown below in Table 7.2. 

Table 7.2. Residential Land Supply after UGBA Phase 1  

Plan Designation          Supply (acres) Plan Description 

UR 2,215 Low-density Residential, 4–10 units/acre 

Vacant 1,669 

Partially Vacant 371 

Page 91



Exhibit C 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 70 

Redevelopable 174 

UM 121 Medium-density Residential, 10–15 units/acre 
Vacant 43 

Partially Vacant 30 

Redevelopable 48  

UH   215 High-density Residential, 15–30 units/acre 
Vacant 138 

Partially Vacant 28 

Redevelopable 49 

Total Residential 2,550 

 
Employment 

The Buildable Lands Inventory concluded that employment land was available within 
the existing UGB in the following amounts: Service Commercial (SC) = 172 acres, 
Industrial (GI & HI) = 641 acres, and Commercial (CM) = 265 acres. 

Table 7.3. Employment Land Supply (adapted from Economic Element Figure 28) 

Plan Designation Supply Plan Description 

SC 172 Service Commercial: office, services, medical 

GI & HI 641 General & Heavy Industrial: manufacturing 

CM  265 Commercial: retail, services 

Total Employment 1,078  

The supply of employment land was changed through UGBA Phase 1.  In several cases 
industrial land was converted to commercial and in other instances residential land was 
converted to commercial. The end result was a more efficient use of land within the 
existing UGB which resulted in a need of 92 fewer acres outside of the existing UGB. The 
resulting employment land supply after UGBA Phase 1 is shown below in Table 7.4. 

Table 7.4. Employment Land Supply after UGBA Phase 1  

Plan Designation Supply Plan Description 

SC 174 Service Commercial: office, services, medical 

GI & HI 519 General & Heavy Industrial: manufacturing 

CM  443 Commercial: retail, services 

Total Employment              1,136 

 
 
 

Page 92



Exhibit D 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 71 

EXHIBIT D. UGBA PHASE 1 EFFECT ON LAND SUPPLY 
 
Urban Growth Boundary Amendment (UGBA) Phase 1 (ISA GLUP Amendment) sought 
to change the General Land Use Plan (GLUP) designation of land in the existing urban 
area for the purpose of increasing its development capacity in order to accommodate 
some of the City’s projected need for residential and employment land. The outcome of 
UGBA Phase 1 was the Selected Amendment Locations (SALs). By changing the GLUP 
map designation for the properties within UGBA Phase 1 the land supply, and 
subsequently, the land need, by GLUP type, were changed. 
  
The Housing Element categorizes available residential land into three categories: 
Vacant, Partially Vacant, and Redevelopable. A capacity analysis was completed for the 
properties included in UGBA Phase 1 and the number of developable acres was 
determined for each of those properties. For residential land types these acres were 
also classified as Redevelopable, Partially Redevelopable, or Vacant based on the 
analysis from the Housing Element. Table 8.1 provides a tabulation of the gains and 
losses in each of the three categories, for each of the three residential GLUP types, from 
UGBA Phase 1. The available land supply from the Housing Element was changed based 
on these numbers in order to account for UGBA Phase 1’s effect on the residential land 
supply.  
 
Table 8.2 shows the effect of UGBA Phase 1 on all GLUP designations. The supply of 
employment GLUP types from the Economic Element were changed based on these 
numbers. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 93



Exhibit D 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 72 

Table 8.1. UGBA Phase 1 Effect on Residential Land Supply by Availability Type in Acres 
(adapted from Ordinance no. 2014-154, Exhibit A, SAL Capacity Analysis) 

RED=Redevelopable, VAC=Vacant, and PDR=Partially Redevelopable 

  UR RED Gain UR VAC Gain UR PDR Gain 

  215a-ur 0.1     
Total 0.1   

    

 UH RED Gain UH VAC Gain UH PDR Gain 

 215c-uh 3.8 510b-uh 6.2 630a-uh 0.1 
 510b-uh 0.2 510b-uh 0.4 630a-uh 2 
 510b-uh 0.2 640b-uh 0.6 630a-uh 0.8 

 540b-uh 19.4 640b-uh 1.8 630a-uh 1.4 

  540b-uh 0.3 640b-uh 0.3 640b-uh 4.8 

  630a-uh 1.2 670b-uh 2.9 640b-uh 0.7 

  640b-uh 0.3 
 

640b-uh 1.7 

  640b-uh 0.3 
 

640b-uh 0.9 

  640b-uh 0.4 
 

670b-uh 1.2 

  640b-uh 0.5 
 

670b-uh 1.1 

  640b-uh 4.2 
  

  670b-uh 0.2 
  

  718a-uh 5.3 
  

Total 36.3 12.2 14.7 

    

  UM RED Gain UM VAC Gain UM PDR Gain 

  540b-um 10.1 213a-um 2.6 212a-um 1 

 540b-um 10.8 213b-um 4.1 212a-um 1.5 

  540b-um 0.2 630b-um 1.1 212b-um 4.5 

 
630b-um 1.4 630b-um 0.6 540d-um 1.5 

  630b-um 0.6 
 

630b-um 1.1 

  630b-um 0.3 
 

630b-um 1.6 

  630b-um 1 
 

630b-um 0.3 

  630b-um 1 
 

630b-um 0.9 

  630b-um 1.3 
 

630b-um 0.8 

  630b-um 0.3 
 

630b-um 1.2 

  630b-um 0.4 
 

630b-um 1 

  630b-um 0.3 
 

630b-um 1 

  670a-um 1.1 
 

640a-um 2.2 

  930a-um 4.8 
 

640a-um 4.8 

  930c-um 6.6 
  

Total 40.2 8.4 23.4 

Page 94



Exhibit D 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 73 

 

 UH RED Loss UH VAC Loss UH PDR Loss 

 740a-cm 0.4  320a-cm 3.8  

  960a-sc 0.7  

  960a-sc 1.6  
Total 0.4 6.1  

    

  UR RED Loss UR VAC Loss UR PDR Loss 

  510b-uh 0.2 213a-um 2.6 212a-um 1 

 510b-uh 0.2 213b-um 4.1 212a-um 1.5 
  540b-um 10.1 510b-uh 6.2 212b-um 4.5 
  540b-um 10.8 510b-uh 0.4 540d-um 1.5 
  540b-um 0.2 630b-um 1.1 630a-uh 0.1 
  540b-uh 19.4 630b-um 0.6 630a-uh 2 
  540b-uh 0.3 640b-uh 0.6 630a-uh 0.8 
  630b-um 0.3 640b-uh 1.8 630a-uh 1.4 
  630a-uh 1.2 640b-uh 0.3 630b-um 1.1 
  630b-um 1.4 670b-uh 2.9 630b-um 1.6 
  630b-um 0.6 510a-cm 11.1 630b-um 0.9 

  630b-um 0.3 718b-cm 1.8 630b-um 0.8 
  630b-um 1 718b-cm 0.5 630b-um 1.2 
  630b-um 1 

 
630b-um 1 

  630b-um 1.3 
 

630b-um 1 
  630b-um 0.3  640a-um 2.2 
  630b-um 0.4 

 
640a-um 4.8 

  630b-um 0.3 
 

640b-uh 4.8 
  640b-uh 0.3 

 
640b-uh 0.7 

  640b-uh 0.3 
 

640b-uh 1.7 
  640b-uh 0.4 

 
640b-uh 0.9 

  640b-uh 0.5 
 

670b-uh 1.2 

  640b-uh 4.2 
 

670b-uh 1.1 
  670a-um 1.1 

 
217a-cm 2.7 

  670b-uh 0.2 
 

217b-cm 1.5 

  718a-uh 5.3 
 

640c-cm 1.7 

  930a-um 4.8 
 

640c-cm 1.1 

  930c-um 6.6 
 

718b-cm 2.3 

  680a-cm 1.2 
 

  

  680a-cm 0.3 
 

  

  930b-cm 9.1 
 

  

  930d-cm 4.3 
 

  

  930d-cm 1.3 
 

  
Total 89.2 34 47.1 

Page 95



Exhibit D 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 74 

Table 8.2. UGBA Phase 1 Effect on Land Need by GLUP Designation in Acres (adapted from Ordinance no. 2014-154, Exhibit A, SAL Capacity Analysis) 

 Addition (acres) to Supply by GLUP per Individual SAL Subtraction (acres) to Supply by GLUP per Individual SAL 
GLUP CM  UM  UH UR SC UR GI HI UH 
 140a-cm 77.6 212a-um 5.2 215c-uh 3.8 215a-ur 0.1 960a-sc 2.4 212a-um 5.2 214a-cm 6.3 140a-cm 77.6 320a-cm 3.8 

 214a-cm 6.3 212b-um 4.5 250a-uh 3.1 
  

212b-um 4.5 215a-ur 0.1 750a-cm 0 740a-cm 0.4 
 215b-cm 22.3 213a-um 6.7 510b-uh 7.1 

  
213a-um 6.7 215b-cm 22.3 760a-cm 0 960a-sc 2.4 

 216a-cm 4.2 540b-um 21.1 540c-uh 19.7 
  

217a-cm 4.2 215c-uh 3.8 
  

 217a-cm 12 540d-um 1.5 630a-uh 5.6 
  

250a-uh 3.1 216a-cm 4.2 
  

 320a-cm 3.8 630b-um 16.5 640b-uh 18.3 
  

510a-cm 27.1 217a-cm 7.8 
  

 510a-cm 27.1 640a-um 7.7 670b-uh 6 
  

510b-uh 7.1 
   

 540a-cm 0.2 670a-um 1.1 718a-uh 5.3 
  

540a-cm 0.2 
   

 640c-cm 3 730a-um 0 
   

540b-um 21.1 
   

 680a-cm 1.5 930a-um 4.8 
   

540c-uh 19.7 
   

 718b-cm 4.6 930c-um 6.6 
   

540d-um 1.5 
   

 740a-cm 0.4  
   

630a-uh 5.6 
   

 750a-cm 0 
    

630b-um 16.5 
   

 760a-cm 0 
    

640a-um 7.7 
   

 930b-cm 9.1 
    

640b-uh 18.3 
   

 930d-cm 4.3 
    

630c-cm 3 
   

 940a-cm 1.3 
    

670a-um 1.1 
   

 970a-cm 0 
    

670b-uh 6 
   

  
    

680a-cm 1.5 
   

  
    

718a-uh 5.3 
   

  
    

718b-cm 4.6 
   

 
     

730a-um 0 
   

 
     

930b-cm 9.1 
   

 
     

930c-um 6.6 
   

 
     

930d-cm 4.3 
   

 
     

940a-cm 1.3 
   

 
     

970a-cm 0 
   

 
     

930a-um 4.8 
   

Total Gain (Loss) 177.7 75.7 68.9 0.1 2.4 (196.1) (44.5) (77.6) (6.6) 

GLUP CM  UM  UH  SC GI  HI  UR  

Net Gain (Loss) by 
GLUP 

177.7 75.7 62.3 2.4 (44.5) (77.6) (196) 

        

Page 96



Exhibit E 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 75 

EXHIBIT E. LAND NEED 

Residential  

The City adopted the Housing Element of the Comprehensive Plan in December 2010. 
The Housing Element built on the conclusions of the Population Element (adopted 
November 2007) and the Buildable Lands Inventory (adopted in February 2008). Over 
the 20-year period from 2009 to 2029 a total of 15,050 new dwelling units are needed 
in Medford. The available supply of residential land within the UGB is expected to 
accommodate 11,424 of those dwelling units leaving a need for 3,626 dwelling units to 
be provided for outside of the existing UGB. Of the dwelling units needed outside of the 
existing UGB, 2,233 are needed in UR, 498 are needed in UM, and 894 are needed in UH. 
To accommodate the needed dwelling units outside of the existing UGB 553 gross acres 
are needed using the following needed (gross) density factors: 4.8 dwelling units per 
acre for UR, 12.8 dwelling units per acre for UM, and 18.1 dwelling units per acre for 
UH. Table 9.1 summarizes the residential land need. 

Table 9.1. Residential Land Need (adapted from Housing Element Table 39)  

 

Dwelling 
Units 

Needed12 

Dwelling 
Unit 

Capacity 

Dwelling 
Unit 

Deficit 

Needed 
Density 
(Gross) 

Needed 
Buildable 

Acres (Gross) 
UR 10,036 7,803 2,233 4.8 465 
UM 993 495 498 12.8 39 
UH 3,329 2,435 894 18.1 49 
Total 

  
 

 
553 

Group Quarters, such as dorms, jails, social service facilities, and nursing homes, are 
typically built in high-density and commercial zones. The Housing Element estimates 
that of the increased population over the 20-year period, 2%, or 712 people will be 
housed in group quarters. Since these facilities are typically built in high-density and 
commercial zones the UH density of 18.1 dwelling units per acre was used, along with 
the average household size, to calculate a need of 16 acres of land for group quarters. 
This land was then allocated to the UH land demand bringing the total need for UH up 
to 66 acres and the total residential land need up to 570 acres. 

Table 9.2. Acres for Group Quarters (adapted from Housing Element page 27 and Table 41)  

 
Group 

Quarters 
Needed 

Acres 
UR 0 465 
UM 0 39 
UH 16 66 
Total  570 

 

12 In the Housing Element a portion of the dwelling unit need and the dwelling unit supply was 
shown to exist on commercial acreage. The portion of the residential need existing on 
commercial land was not used to calculate density or the number of acres needed to meet the 
housing demand, because the residential component on commercial land was assumed to exist 
in addition to a commercial use on that property.   

Page 97



Exhibit E 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 76 

The Housing Element also included a calculation for needed public and semi-public 
land. These uses include parks, schools, churches, and fraternal lodges. The study 
concluded that there are roughly 17 acres of public and semi-public land for every 
1,000 people in the existing UGB. The study assumed a need of 11.6 acres of public and 
semi-public land for every 1,000 people added to the population of Medford. Given the 
projected population increase of 35,591 people a total of 426 acres is needed for public 
and semi-public uses over the 20-year planning period. This land was allocated to the 
three residential land types based on the percentage of dwelling units needed for each 
type. The inclusion of the public and semi-public land need is summarized in Table 9.3. 

Table 9.3. Public and Semi-Public Lands (adapted from Housing Element Tables 40 & 41)
  

 
Public and 

Semi-Public  
Total Acres 

Needed 
UR 298 763 
UM 29 68 
UH 99 164 
Total 426 996 

When the supply of residential land was changed through UGBA Phase 1 (see Tables 7.1 
and 7.2) the amount of land needed in each of the residential GLUP designations was 
also changed. With more of the high-density and medium-density need being met 
within the existing UGB, fewer acres of each of those land types are needed to be added. 
Conversely, since some of the low-density residential land supply has been displaced 
from within the existing UGB, a greater amount must now be added through the UGB 
amendment process. While UGBA Phase 1 resulted in a 58-acre conversion of land from 
residential to employment GLUP designations the total residential land need only 
increased by 36 acres.  This is due to the fact that some of this land was not identified as 
meeting any portion of the future residential land need (because it was classified as 
developed) but it is now being counted toward meeting the employment land need 
(because it is expected to redevelop as commercial). Table 9.4 shows the amount of 
residential land needed both before and after UGBA Phase 1.  

Table 9.4. Residential Land Need before and after UGBA Phase 1  

 
Needed Acres 

Before SALs 
Needed Acres 

After SALs 
UR 763 885 
UM 68 27 
UH 164 120 
Total 996 1,032 

 

Employment 

The City adopted the Economic Element of the Comprehensive Plan in December 2008. 
The Economic Element built on the conclusions of the Population Element (adopted 

Page 98



Exhibit E 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 77 

November 2007) and the Buildable Lands Element (adopted in February 2008). Over 
the 20-year period from 2008 to 2028 a total of 1,645 acres of employment land is 
needed in Medford. The Economic Element did not use the General Land Use Plan 
(GLUP) designations used by the City to classify employment land by type, but rather 
specifies the need for Office Commercial, Industrial, and Retail Commercial land. The 
Retail Commercial need can only be met in the Commercial (CM) GLUP designation 
because retail is only permitted within zoning districts allowed in CM. The Industrial 
need will be met in the General Industrial (GI) and the Heavy Industrial (HI) GLUP 
designations. The Office Commercial need will be met in both the CM and Service 
Commercial (SC) GLUP designations, which both allow for offices within their 
respective zoning types. Because the SC GLUP is intended to provide primarily for 
employment/office uses, such as business offices and medical offices, both the medium-
size and large-size office site need is assigned to the SC GLUP designation. The small-
size office site need is expected to be met by fill-in development, mixed with other 
commercial uses. This type of development is most appropriately accommodated 
within the zoning types permitted in the CM GLUP designation and is assigned to CM for 
land need. 

In addition to the standard employment land categories the Economic Element 
identified a need for 284 “Other” acres, comprised of 31 acres for overnight lodging and 
253 acres for specialized uses.  Since the “Other” acres need to be put into a city land 
use designation, and since the Economic Element did not do so, it is necessary to 
distribute those acres. Since about 9/10 of the “Other” category is described as 
“campus-type development,” and since that type of development would only be a 
permitted use in the Industrial and the Service Commercial designations, a two-way 
partition (126 acres each) into those is appropriate. The other 31 net acres in the 
“Other” category are for overnight lodging; which are typically permitted in the CM 
designation. 

Table 9.5. Conversion of Economic Element Designation to GLUP Designation (adapted 
from Economic Element Figure 28) 

Use Type 
Demand in 

Net Acres 

Allocate 
Overnight and 

Specialized 

Total 
Demand in 

Net Acres 

GLUP Need in 
Net Acres 

Office Commercial 404 126 530 SC = 352 

Industrial 471 126 597 GI & HI = 597 

Retail Commercial 488 31 519 CM = 697 

   City Residents 248 
    

   Region/Tourists 240 
    

Overnight Lodging 31 
    

Specialized Uses 253 
    

Total 1,645 
 

1,645 1,645 

 

 

Page 99



Exhibit E 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 78 

When we compare the supply of employment land, 1,078 acres (see Table 7.3), against 
the total demand, 1,645 acres (see Table 9.5), we see a deficit of 567 acres over the 20-
year period. The Economic Element adds 25% to net acres to convert to gross acres, as 
recommended in DLCD Goal 9 guidebook, to account for streets and other 
infrastructure needs.  The total employment land need is 709 acres when converted to 
gross acres. 
 
However, this comparison of the overall supply of employment land against the overall 
demand does not provide an accurate representation of the employment land need for 
the City. When we compare the land need against the supply of land, by employment 
GLUP type, we see that there is a 44-acre surplus of industrial land within the existing 
UGB over the 20-year period (Table 9.6). Since this surplus (if left in the industrial GLUP 
designations) does not help to meet the commercial land need, the actual need for 
employment land is 612 net acres, which converts to 765 gross acres. This is the true 
employment land need for the 20-year period. 

Table 9.6. Employment Land Need in Net Acres 

 
Supply Demand 

Deficit 
(surplus) 

Deficit for 
Land Need 

SC 172 352 180 180 
GI & HI 641 597 (44) 0 
CM 265 697 432 432 
Total 

  
 612 

Table 9.6 shows that there is a surplus supply of industrial land within the existing UGB 
over the 20-year period. In accordance with ORS 197.296 subsection (6) the City 
undertook UGBA Phase 1 to increase the developable capacity of the urban area. This 
was done primarily by converting surplus industrial land to commercial land. It was 
also done by converting some residential land that was not identified as meeting any of 
the future residential land need to employment land that is now meeting some of the 
identified employment land need. Unlike with the residential land need, which changed 
by 36 acres based on the 58-acre change from residential to employment, the 
employment land need decreased by 58 acres based on those conversions. 
 
As shown in Table 9.7, UGBA Phase 1 resulted in the addition of approximately two 
acres of SC land, bringing the total supply to 174 acres, and decreasing the deficit to 177 
acres. UGBA Phase 1 added approximately 178 acres to the CM land, bringing the total 
supply to 443 acres, and decreasing the deficit to 254 acres. UGBA Phase 1 converted 
approximately 122 acres of GI & HI land, bringing the supply of land down to 519 acres, 
and changing the 44-acre surplus of land to a 77-acre deficit. By increasing the 
developable capacity of employment lands within the existing UGB, as recommended by 
ORS 197.296 subsection (6), the City reduced its overall need for employment land 
from 765 gross acres to 637 gross acres, a difference of 128 gross acres. 
 
 
 

Page 100



Exhibit E 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 79 

Table 9.7. Employment Land Need after UGBA Phase 1 (net acres) 

 
Supply 

Before SALs 
Supply 

After SALs 
Demand Deficit 

SC 172 174 352 177 
GI & HI 641 519 597 78 
CM 265 443 697 254 
Total 

 
 

 
509 

The number of net acres needed is then converted to gross acres in order to account for 
roads and other infrastructure resulting in a total employment land need of 637 gross 
acres. 

Table 9.8. Net-to Gross Conversion of Employment Land Need after UGBA Phase 1 

 
Deficit in 
Net Acres 

Deficit in 
Gross Acres 

SC 177 222 
GI & HI 78 97 
CM 254 318 
Total  637 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 101



Exhibit F 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 80 

EXHIBIT F. COARSE FILTER MAPS 
Map 10.1. Proximity 

 

Page 102



Exhibit F 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 81 

Map 10.2. Parcel Size 

 

Page 103



Exhibit G 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 82 

EXHIBIT G. CAPACITY ANALYSIS OF THE URBAN RESERVE 

Map 11.1. Capacity Analysis Results for ESAs 

 

Page 104



Exhibit H 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 83 

EXHIBIT H. ADDITIONAL SCORING MAPS 
Map 12.1. Water 

 

Page 105



Exhibit H 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 84 

Map 12.2. Sewer 

 

Page 106



Exhibit H 

Staff Report   

 

 
Page 85 

Map 12.3. Transportation 

 

Page 107



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 1 

 

EXHIBIT I.  INFRASTRUCTURE SCORING MEMOS 

Page 108



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 2 

 
Page 109



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 3 

 
Page 110



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 4 

 
Page 111



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 5 

 
Page 112



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 6 

 
Page 113



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 7 

 
Page 114



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 8 

 
Page 115



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 9 

 
Page 116



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 10 

 
Page 117



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 11 

 
Page 118



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 12 

 
Page 119



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 13 

 
Page 120



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 14 

 
Page 121



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 15 

 
Page 122



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 16 

 
Page 123



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 17 

 
Page 124



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 18 

 
Page 125



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 19 

 
Page 126



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 20 

 
Page 127



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 21 

 
Page 128



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 22 

 
Page 129



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 23 

 
Page 130



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 24 

 
Page 131



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 25 

 
Page 132



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 26 

 
Page 133



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 27 

 
Page 134



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 28 

 
Page 135



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 29 

 
Page 136



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 30 

 
Page 137



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 31 

 
Page 138



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 32 

 
Page 139



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 33 

 
Page 140



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 34 

 
Page 141



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 35 

 
Page 142



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 36 

 
Page 143



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 37 

 
Page 144



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 38 

 
Page 145



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 39 

 
Page 146



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 40 

 
Page 147



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 41 

 
Page 148



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 42 

 
Page 149



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 43 

 
Page 150



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 44 

 
Page 151



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 45 

 
Page 152



Exhibit I 

Staff Report   

 

Page 46 

 

 

Page 153



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

1 

EXHIBIT J.  LETTERS FROM PROPERTY OWNERS AND AGENTS 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 154



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

2 

 

Page 155



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

3 

Page 156



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

4 

Page 157



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

5 

Page 158



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

6 

 

Page 159



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

7 

Page 160



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

8 

 

Page 161



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

9 

Page 162



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

10 

Page 163



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

11 

 

Page 164



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

12 

Page 165



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

13 

Page 166



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

14 

Page 167



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

15 

Page 168



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

16 

Page 169



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

17 

Page 170



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

18 

Page 171



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

19 

Page 172



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

20 

Page 173



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

21 

Page 174



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

22 

Page 175



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

23 

Page 176



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

24 

Page 177



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

25 

Page 178



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

26 

Page 179



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

27 

 

Page 180



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

28 

Page 181



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

29 

 

Page 182



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

30 

Page 183



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

31 

Page 184



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

32 

Page 185



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

33 

Page 186



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

34 

Page 187



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

35 

Page 188



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

36 

Page 189



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

37 

Page 190



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

38 

Page 191



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

39 

 

Page 192



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

40 

Page 193



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

41 

Page 194



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

42 

Page 195



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

43 

Page 196



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

44 

Page 197



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

45 

Page 198



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

46 

Page 199



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

47 

Page 200



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

48 

Page 201



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

49 

Page 202



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

50 

Page 203



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

51 

Page 204



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

52 

Page 205



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

53 

Page 206



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

54 

Page 207



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

55 

Page 208



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

56 

Page 209



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

57 

Page 210



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

58 

Page 211



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

59 

Page 212



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

60 

Page 213



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

61 

Page 214



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

62 

Page 215



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

63 

Page 216



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

64 

Page 217



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

65 

Page 218



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

66 

Page 219



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

67 

Page 220



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

68 

Page 221



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

69 

Page 222



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

70 

Page 223



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

71 

Page 224



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

72 

Page 225



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

73 

Page 226



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

74 

Page 227



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

75 

Page 228



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

76 

Page 229



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

77 

Page 230



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

78 

Page 231



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

79 

Page 232



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

80 

Page 233



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

81 

Page 234



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

82 

Page 235



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

83 

Page 236



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

84 

Page 237



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

85 

Page 238



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

86 

Page 239



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

87 

Page 240



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

88 

Page 241



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

89 

Page 242



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

90 

Page 243



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

91 

Page 244



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

92 

Page 245



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

93 

Page 246



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

94 

Page 247



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

95 

Page 248



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

96 

Page 249



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

97 

Page 250



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

98 

Page 251



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

99 

Page 252



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

100 

Page 253



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

101 

Page 254



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

102 

Page 255



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

103 

Page 256



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

104 

Page 257



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

105 

Page 258



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

106 

Page 259



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

107 

Page 260



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

108 

Page 261



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

109 

Page 262



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

110 

Page 263



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

111 

Page 264



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

112 

Page 265



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

113 

Page 266



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

114 

Page 267



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

115 

Page 268



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

116 

Page 269



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

117 

Page 270



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

118 

Page 271



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

119 

Page 272



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

120 

Page 273



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

121 

Page 274



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

122 

Page 275



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

123 

Page 276



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

124 

Page 277



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

125 

Page 278



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

126 

Page 279



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

127 

Page 280



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

128 

Page 281



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

129 

Page 282



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

130 

Page 283



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

131 

Page 284



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

132 

Page 285



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

133 

Page 286



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

134 

Page 287



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

135 

Page 288



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

136 

Page 289



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

137 

Page 290



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

138 

Page 291



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

139 

 

Page 292



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

140 

Page 293



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

141 

Page 294



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

142 

Page 295



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

143 

Page 296



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

144 

Page 297



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

145 

Page 298



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

146 

Page 299



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

147 

Page 300



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

148 

Page 301



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

149 

Page 302



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

150 

Page 303



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

151 

Page 304



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

152 

Page 305



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

153 

Page 306



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

154 

Page 307



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

155 

Page 308



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

156 

Page 309



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

157 

Page 310



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

158 

Page 311



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

159 

Page 312



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

160 

 

Page 313



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

161 

 

Page 314



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

162 

 

Page 315



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

163 

 

Page 316



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

164 

Page 317



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

165 
 

Page 318



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

166 

Page 319



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

167 

Page 320



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

168 

Page 321



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

169 

Page 322



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

170 

Page 323



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

171 

Page 324



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

172 

Page 325



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

173 

Page 326



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

174 

Page 327



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

175 

Page 328



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

176 

Page 329



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

177 

Page 330



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

178 

Page 331



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

179 

Page 332



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

180 

Page 333



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

181 

Page 334



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

182 

Page 335



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

183 

Page 336



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

184 

 

Page 337



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

185 

Page 338



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

186 

Page 339



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

187 

Page 340



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

188 

 

Page 341



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

189 

 

 

 

Page 342



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

190 

Page 343



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

191 

Page 344



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

192 

Page 345



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

193 

Page 346



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

194 

Page 347



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

195 

Page 348



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

196 

Page 349



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

197 

Page 350



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

198 

Page 351



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

199 

 

Page 352



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

200 

Page 353



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

201 

Page 354



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

202 

Page 355



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

203 

Page 356



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

204 

Page 357



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

205 

Page 358



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

206 

Page 359



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

207 

Page 360



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

208 

Page 361



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

209 

Page 362



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

210 

Page 363



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

211 

Page 364



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

212 

Page 365



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

213 

Page 366



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

214 

 

Page 367



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

215 

 

Page 368



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

216 

Page 369



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

217 

Page 370



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

218 

Page 371



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

219 

Page 372



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

220 

Page 373



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

221 

Page 374



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

222 

Page 375



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

223 

Page 376



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

224 

Page 377



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

225 

Page 378



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

226 

Page 379



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

227 

Page 380



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

228 

Page 381



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

229 

Page 382



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

230 

Page 383



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

231 

Page 384



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

232 

Page 385



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

233 

Page 386



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

234 

Page 387



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

235 

Page 388



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

236 

Page 389



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

237 
 

Page 390



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

238 

Page 391



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

239 

Page 392



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

240 

Page 393



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

241 

Page 394



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

242 

Page 395



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

243 

Page 396



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

244 

Page 397



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

245 

Page 398



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

246 

Page 399



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

247 

Page 400



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

248 

Page 401



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

249 

Page 402



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

250 

Page 403



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

251 

Page 404



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

252 

Page 405



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

253 

Page 406



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

254 

Page 407



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

255 

Page 408



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

256 

Page 409



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

257 

Page 410



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

258 

Page 411



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

259 

Page 412



Exhibit J 

Staff Report   

 

260 

 

Page 413


	Agenda (page 2)
	20.1 Consent Calendar/Written Communication - CUP-13-139 - Staff Report - Extension of Time (pages 3-4)
	Exhibit A - Extension Request Letter (page 5)
	Vicinity Map (page 6)

	20.2 - Staff Report - Extension of Time (page 7)
	Exhibit A- Extension Request Letter (page 8)
	Vicinity Map (page 9)

	30.1 Minutes of February 12, 2015 (pages 10-19)
	30.2 Minutes of February 26, 2015 (pages 20-22)
	50.1 CPA-14-114 - Staff Report - Urban Growth Boundary Amendment (UGBA) (pages 23-37)
	Exhibit A - Proposed Amendment (pages 38-43)
	Exhibit B - Findings (pages 44-90)
	Exhibit C - Available Land (pages 91-92)
	Exhibit D - UGBA Phase 1 Effect on Land Supply (pages 93-96)
	Exhibit E - Land Need (pages 97-101)
	Exhibit F - Coarse Filter Maps (pages 102-103)
	Exhibit G - Capacity Analysis of Urban Reserve (page 104)
	Exhibit H - Additional Scoring Maps (pages105-107)
	Exhibit I - Infrastructure Scoring Memos (pages 108-153)
	Exhibit J - Letters from Property Owners and Agents (pages 154-413)
	Recommended Action - Based on the findings and conclusions that all the approval critieria are met, and based on the testimony received in writing and at hearing(s), the Planning Commission should either: 1) Recommend approval to the City Council per the recommendations in the staff report dated March 12, 2015, including Exhibits A-J, or 2) Direct staff to modify the proposal and findings, and return with the modifications at a future hearing for consideration by the Planning Commission (page 37) 




